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Cautionary
Statement

This annual report may contain forward looking 
statements with respect to certain of ABC Unit Trusts 
plans and its current goals and expectations relating 
to its future financial condition, performance and 
results and, in particular, estimates of future cash 
flows and costs. By their nature, all forward looking 
statements involve risk and uncertainty because they 
relate to future events and circumstances which are 
beyond ABC Asset Management’s control including 
amongst other things, domestic conditions across 
our operations as well as global economic and 
business conditions, market related risks such as 
fluctuations in equity market levels, interest rates 
and exchange rates, the policies and actions of 
regulatory authorities, the impact of competition, 
inflation, deflation, the timing and impact of other 
uncertainties of future acquisitions or combinations 
within relevant industries.

As a result, ABC Unit Trust’s actual future financial 
condition, performance and results may differ materially 
from the plans, goals and expectations set forth in 
the Fund Manager’s forward-looking statements. 
ABC Asset Management undertakes no obligation to 
update the forward-looking statements contained in 
this report or any other forward-looking statements 
it may make. Nothing in this report shall constitute 
an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy 
securities.
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Our purpose is to continually invest responsibly for 
all our stakeholders and deliver on a sustainable 
business model that allows us positively meet all 
of our investors aspirations. We nurture the values 
that are at the center of who we are as a business 
namely Partnership, Respect, Integrity, Courage and 
Commitment.

Our
Purpose

We continually 
invest 

responsibly for all 
our stakeholders 

and deliver on 
sustainable 

business models

“

“We will build a partnership 
that always puts our 
clients first.

Partnership

We will respect and value our 
relationship with the customer.

Respect

We will always want 
to act with responsibility 
and honesty.

Integrity

We will provide you
the avenue and tools 
to achieve your aspirations
as an investor.

Courage

We will provide visible 
commitment that is focused 
on growing your wealth.

Commitment
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Business 
Overview

African Banking Corporation Investments Services Limited (Registration number: 47958) trading as ABC Asset 
Management is an approved Collective Investment Schemes (CIS) management company in accordance with 
the provisions of part V of the Securities Act, No. 41 of 2016, with Dealer License number DL/01/20. The entity 
is a wholly owned subsidiary of Atlas Mara Zambia Limited. Atlas Mara Zambia is registered Financial Institution 
offering a range of personal, business and wholesale banking products to Zambian customers. 

Investment Management Services:           
We manage investments for institutions and private investors throughout the client lifecycle. We assist our clients 
to navigate market uncertainties by helping them focus on investments that provide an optimal mix of liquidity, 
risk and returns on their capital. As stewards of the capital our investors entrust to us, we leverage our experience 
and deep operating expertise to create long-term value on their behalf, helping them meet their goals and protect 
their financial futures.

Infrastructure:             
Our operational structure is fully supported by shared services with Atlas Mara Bank. The bank has signed a 
binding service level agreement with ABC Asset management to provide critical services that support the business 
and include capabilities across Technology, Operations, Risk, Human Resources, Compliance, Legal, Governance 
and Internal Audit.
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(2020: K182m)
K254m 40%
Net Asset Value (NAV)

(2020: K21m)
K32m 52%
NET OPPERATING PROFITS

(2020: K21m)
K44m 52%
GROSS OPERATING REVENUE

(2020: K8m)
K12m 50%
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

CLIENT
RETENTION 100%

Performance
Highlights

We leverage our 
experience and 
deep operating 

expertise to 
create long-term 

value for our 
clients, helping 
them meet their 

goals and protect 
their financial 

futures

“

“
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ABC Unit Trusts 
at a Glance

As economic dynamics keep changing, we remain alert to redirect our investment decisions towards asset 
selection that optimises value for all our investors. Over the medium to long term, we will endeavour to remain 
true to our purpose which is to continually invest responsibly for all our stakeholders and deliver on a sustainable 
business model that allows us to positively meet all our investors’ aspirations.

Total Funds under Management for 2021 closed at K253m representing year on year growth of 39%. The ABC 
Unit Trust continues to outperform budgetary projections set by the business. Funds have continued to grow 
across the different portfolios as we serve clients throughout the investment lifecycle.  The business appreciates 
that client demands are regularly changing with increased focus towards outcome-oriented solutions.
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Despite the 
uncertainties 
posed by the 
pandemic, the 

ABC Unit Trust’s 
total Funds Under 

Management 
closed at K253m, 

up from the 
previous year by 

39%

“

“
2021 ANNUAL REPORT

Dear Unit Holders,

2021 was a year of rebound and recovery, it narrowed the economic risks seen in 2020 when the Covid-19 pandemic 
took a ravaging toll on economies. Governments shifted attention from pandemic response to recovery. Further, the 
recent vaccination trends raise hope of continued positive economic recovery across the globe and for domestic 
markets. Current indicative forecasts for global growth for 2021 is 5.9% from the contraction of 3.1% in 2020 
while domestic growth is expected to come at about 3.3% from the negative growth in 2020. Granted, we have 
seen positive economic developments, it remains a fact that the ongoing variants retain increased uncertainty 
about how quickly the pandemic can be overcome. Locally, the peaceful transition of power in August from the 
Patriotic Front (PF) to the United Party for National Development (UPND) was received favourably by the markets. 
Our young democracy was hailed as a beacon for democratic dispensation. We are hopeful that the pro market 
economic policies being pursued by the current Government will assist increase the level of domestic output to 
help attain pre Covid-19 growth rates. 

Stable Financial Performance           
Despite the uncertainties posed by the pandemic, I am pleased to report a sound financial performance for the ABC 
Unit Trust for the financial year ended 31 December 2021. The ABC Unit Trust’s total Funds Under Management 
closed at K253m, up from the previous year by 39%, total net operating revenue maintained a strong growth 
momentum closing the year at K31m, up by 48% from previous year, indicating strong financial results. The 
2021 financial performance reflects favourably on a robust investment strategy approved by the Board, mainly 
to de-risk the portfolio in view of the weak macroeconomic fundamentals perceived at the onset of the pandemic 
coupled with rising public debt. The business took a deliberate stance to increase its weight towards Government 
securities concentrating mostly on average tenors of 3-4 years. This investment strategy helped us balance the 
risks whilst maintaining descent interest yields over the portfolio. Going forward, we shall continue to closely 
monitor risk tendencies within the economy, and we shall readily adjust our strategy appropriately toalign to the 
macroeconomic environment. Over the medium to long term, we shall endeavour to remain true to our purpose 
which is to continually invest responsibly for all our stakeholders and deliver on a sustainable business model 
that allows us to positively meet all our investors’ aspirations.

Board Chairperson’s
Message
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Portfolio Resilience            
The biggest inherent risk within our portfolio was financial risk which covers a broad range of individual risks such 
as market, credit, liquidity, and capital risks. Over the period we reinforced on governance around the investments 
by ensuring that appropriate limits were set by the Investment Committee and that such limits were appropriately 
monitored by the business. I am happy to report that the performance of the securities as evidenced from the 
computed expected loss gives proof of the resilience of the portfolio supported by enhanced control rigor on all 
Funds under Management.

Know Your Customer (KYC)           
Following the deep dive on client mandates, the business was found inadequately placed on KYC requirements as 
most investors’ accounts have had incomplete KYC mandates. The Board implored Management to amplify the 
need for all investors to update their details and, hence repeated reminders have been sent out so as to comply 
with KYC requirements in accordance with prevailing laws and thus allow the business to serve you better. Even 
though the response has been favourable, we wish to encourage all those who are yet to update their records 
and mandates to urgently do so in order to avoid any inconvenience.

Revised Terms and Conditions          
I am glad to mention that the Board approved new Terms and Conditions that took effect on 1st January 2022. 
Further, the business rolled out investor declaration forms which will be used during the onboarding of new 
clients. We believe these initiatives are progressive and will help us to heighten the governance of our services 
to you. We also believe this will improve our interaction with all our investors both existing and new.

Online Access to Investment Accounts         
Over the period we delivered on the automated access to investor accounts. Most investors currently have access 
to their statements via the online portal. This is in line with our strategic direction of creating a seamless customer 
experience. We believe that this online access helps us remedy some of the dissatisfaction which arose because 
of the manual transmission of statements to most clients.

Access Bank Announcement of Binding Agreement with Atlas Mara Group     
On the 26th October 2021, Atlas Mara Limited (“Atlas Mara”), ABCH Holdings Limited (“ABCH”) and Access Bank 
Plc (“Access Bank”), announced that an agreement had been entered into regarding a proposed transaction under 
which African Banking Corporation Zambia Limited (T/A “Atlas Mara Zambia”) would be merged with Access 
Bank Plc’s Zambian subsidiary – Access Bank Zambia. The transaction is subject to regulatory approvals and 
other customary conditions for transactions of this nature. We look forward to the leverage off this merger so 
that we serve you our esteemed clients better.

Looking Ahead             
The strategy for the Trust is to build portfolio resilience through diversification of asset classes, while nurturing 
strong investee relationships to attract and retain quality investments. We shall, over the ensuing period ensure 
to manage liquidity whilst closely observing our reinvestment risks as market rates keep declining. Our strategy 
will remain a defensive one to drive a balanced risk adjusted portfolio with competitive returns.

Board Acknowledgements           
On behalf of the Board of Directors I would like to thank you the Unit Holders and partners for your continued 
support and confidence in ABC Unit Trust. I would also like to thank my fellow Directors for their contributions in 
providing effective oversight and direction to the Unit Trust. To the Management team, I say thank you for their 
contributions and commitment to deliver consistent value and growth for the Trust. 

May all of you stay safe and well.

Mrs. Joyce Muwo-Mwansa           
Board Chairperson
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Fund Manager’s 
Statement

The portfolio remained resilient during the year despite the Covid-19 pandemic and outperforming the expectations 
we set a year ago. Total growth on Funds under Management was 39% year on year versus our set target of 
25%. Total gross operating revenues went up by 52% over 2018. This was driven by increase in Funds under 
Management coupled with a robust investment strategy to outlay capital towards low-risk assets with higher 
risk adjusted returns. 

Over the period, 
our investment 

appetite was driven 
by an overarching 
risk assessment 

which considered 
the weak 

macroeconomic 
fundamentals.

“

“

Annual Growth Rates %

ABC  MARKET

2018

45

21

9

22

2019

53

47

2020

40

33

2021
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Over the period, our investment appetite was driven by an overarching risk assessment which considered the 
weak macroeconomic fundamentals. Economic fundamentals weakened following the high reported public debt 
and reduced economic activities on the back of disruptions of supply chains due to partial lockdowns to contain 
the spread of COVID-19. To mitigate these environmental risks, we increased our weight on government bonds 
which provided descent risk-adjusted spreads. During the period we also rebalanced our equities to allow us 
reduce concentration on selected sectors and thus reduce portfolio volatility.

Competition for available new investments was higher than ever as we noted increased oversubscriptions for the 
selected tenors of the government bonds. On the other hand, issuers for corporate bonds as well as commercials 
papers remained relatively few, as such we were very selective in pursuing new investment opportunities as a 
way of preserving capital. Over the just ended financial year we managed seven (7) different portfolios namely 
Money Market Fund, Balanced Fund, Gratuity Fund, Equity Fund, USD Fund, USD High Yield Fund and ZMW 
High Yield Fund.

Portfolio Review            
Over the just ended financial year we managed seven (7) different portfolios namely Money Market Fund, Balanced 
Fund, Gratuity Fund, Equity Fund, USD Fund, USD High Yield Fund and ZMW High Yield Fund.

Compound Annual Growth Rate (CAGR) over the last three year was 43% showing strong growth momentum 
for the business. 
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Interest income contributed a significant portion of the portfolio’s movements in investors closing positions. As 
was communicated in previous disclosures the total discount reserves on the liabilities relate to the unearned 
portion of the government bonds that are being unwound daily over the period of the bonds.

The Equity Fund remained relatively stagnant in new acquisitions mostly due to the negative performance from 
mid-2019, efforts to wash away inherent risks on some of the stocks were met with market illiquidity. We are, 
however, very optimistic that equities will rebound going forward following decline in average yields on fixed 
income instruments and due to the rebalancing of the portfolio that was done in the second half of the year.

Investment Activity            
In the second half of the year, we started to rebalance the Equity Fund to reduce concentration on selected 
stocks. The investment committee approved reduction in total exposure limits on single stocks to drive a wide 
stock range and reduce volatility within the Fund. We expect positive equity returns in 2022. It deserves mention 
that as part of our investment approach on equities, all stock selection is carefully done following a bottom-up 
approach. Our strategy is to actively manage all counters whilst keeping a growth and long-term outlook. 

The Fund Manager is alive to the fact that the economic and market dynamics are looking up owing to the current 
government’s key economic and monetary policy pronouncements that are pointing towards being market friendly. 
We are optimistic this will further taper some of the weak macroeconomic fundamentals and help boost increased 
economic activities across most productive sectors.

Government Bonds Portfolio           
Current sovereign risk for Zambia is clouded around the large debt stock. Zambia’s longer-term local currency 
sovereign credit rating was recently upgraded to CCC+ from CCC. Meanwhile, the short-term local currency rating 
was affirmed at C by S&P. These latest credit rating are premised on stable outlook which balances expectations 
of improvements in the government’s fiscal position of the next 12 months against its large debt pile and the 
risk the local currency debt could be included in a potential restructuring with International Monetary Fund (IMF) 
under the Extended Credit Facility (ECF) in the amount of about $1.4 billion. The financing program aims to restore 
macroeconomic stability and foster higher, more resilient, and inclusive growth.

Zambia’s foreign currency credit rating is currently SD. This is on the back of the Zambian government default 
on its foreign currency debt obligation in October 2020. However, chances to taper this rating remain high upon 
the completion of Zambia’s debt restructuring plan which may reform the country’s capacity to support its public 
debt. In his parliamentary address the Minister of Finance Dr Situmbeko Musokotwane, also made mention of the 
earnest calls that the government is making towards debt restructuring using Lazard Freres and White & Case, 
who are expected to deliver a strategy that will lead into actual engagements with creditors under the common 
framework initiative.

Looking ahead, we are hopeful that economic growth will average north of 3% premised on key sectors namely, 
electricity, gas and water as well as information and communications technology (ICT). Mining will benefit from 
stronger copper prices as the global economy recovers. On the other hand, favourable rainfall, and commencement 
of electricity generation at Kafue Gorge Lower Hydro Power Station are expected to support growth of the 
electricity sector.  

The following is the breakdown of the maturity ladders for the local currency government bonds on the portfolio 
which are all held to maturity.
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Staff Changes             
During the year Mrs. Michelle Musonda Banda moved out of the unit to work as Relationship Manager for Premium 
Elite clients with the main bank. She has since been replaced by Mrs Michelle Lupupa who joined the team as a 
Client Portfolio Manager. Prior to joining the team Mrs Lupupa worked as Relationship Officer at Arcades Branch 
of Atlas Mara. She has been with the bank for over seven years having started with Finance Bank Zambia. She 
brings with her a mature banking experience centered on customer excellence. We are excited that she will assist 
serve all our unit holders to the expected degree.

During the same period, Mr Danny Mulenga separated with the business to pursue other personal interests. He 
had served the business close to 10 years. Management and staff thank him for his commitments and dedicated 
contribution to the Fund.

Outlook             
Since we last reported, the Zambian economy has proved to be more resilient than initial forecasts of economic 
growth. Business confidence has improved following positive outcomes from the vaccination programme and 
recent pro market fiscal and monetary policy pronouncements. Whilst the long-term social, economic, and political 
risks associated with the current pandemic are still unknown, there are signs that the impact of the pandemic on 
most economic sectors is starting to ease.

The Manager also believes that the portfolio is well positioned against the future interest rate risks as well as 
macroeconomic uncertainties given its relatively defensive strategy towards low-risk assets with better long-term 
spreads. 

Despite the challenges of the pandemic, the Manager continues to regard a thorough understanding of key 
macroeconomic leading indicators and a clear focus on investment excellence as being essential to achieving 
sustainable long-term risk-adjusted returns.

Nicholas Kabaso (Mr.)            
Fund Manager

Maturity Ladder K ‘Millions

1-2 Years 3-4 Years > 5 Years

10.2

30.1

80.8
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Market 
Review

Global Economic trends             
2021 was a year of recovery and rebound. Economies globally showed positive economic growth attributed to 
the relaxation of COVID-19 restrictions that allowed for the resumption of economic and other activities. Further, 
increased spending by governments and provision of liquidity by central banks aided the recovery. However, a 
strong recovery in global aggregate demand in nominal terms over the past year was not matched by an equal 
recovery in nations’ gross domestic output. 

Inflationary risks have persisted across most economies around the globe. This follows the aftermath of COVID-19 
recession, coupled with lingering supply-chain disruptions and labor shortages, amplified by energy price shocks 
which have all created a looming challenge for price hikes across different markets. 

In view of the above, global economic growth rates have been moderated downwards to 5.9% in 2021 and 
4.9% in 20225. The downward revision for 2021 reflects a downgrade for advanced economies—in part due to 
supply disruptions—and for low-income developing countries, largely due to worsening pandemic dynamics. 
This is partially offset by stronger near-term prospects among some commodity-exporting emerging market and 
developing economies.

Outlook for the global economy is poised for a second year of above-trend growth, although slower than 2021. 
“Beyond 2022 global growth is projected to moderate to about 3.3% over the medium term. Advanced economy 
output is forecast to exceed pre-pandemic medium-term projections—largely reflecting sizable anticipated further 
policy support in the United States that includes measures to increase potential. By contrast, persistent output 
losses are anticipated for the emerging market and developing economy group due to slower vaccine rollouts 
and generally less policy support compared to advanced economies.” (IMF, World Economic Outlook – Recovery 
During a Pandemic, October 2021).

Domestic Economic trends            
Despite the fourth wave of the pandemic in December that culminated into increased number of covid-19 Omicron 
cases. The domestic market proved very positive in its outlook. Preliminary statistics show that the domestic 
economy was up by 3.3% from a contraction of 3% in prior year.
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International Reserves US FX Rate
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2021 positive output is attributed to key sectors such as mining, electricity, gas and water as well as information 
and communications technology (ICT) sectors. Mining benefited from stronger copper prices as the global 
economy recovers. On the other hand, favorable rainfall, and commencement of electricity generation at Kafue 
Gorge Lower Hydro Power Station are expected to support growth of the electricity sector. 

Zambia’s gross international reserves as at November 2021 closed at $2.7 Billion representing the 5.5 months 
of import cover, from $1.2 Billion as of December 2020(Up by 125%). The improvement in the foreign exchange 
reserve position increases the country’s ability to respond to unexpected external events and the ability to address 
volatility in the exchange rate.

Following the August 12 presidential and parliamentary elections which ushered in a new government, market 
consensus is that both monetary and fiscal policy will remain market friendly as the government works towards 
reducing the cost of capital on the market. The government has set out the following as key macro-economic 
objectives for 2022.

(i)   Attain a real GDP growth rate of at least 3.5%.        
(ii)  Reduce inflation to single digits by end 2022 and within the target band of 6-8% by mid-2023.  
(iii) Limit international reserves to at least 3 months of import cover.      
(iv) Increase domestic revenue to not less than 21.0% of GDP.       
(v)  Reduce the fiscal deficit to no more than 6.7% of GDP.       
(vi) Limit domestic borrowing to no more 5.2% of GDP.

2021 ANNUAL REPORT
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From the above highlighted performance indicators, it is very clear that achieving a stable macroeconomic 
environment remains critical for the new government. However, much will depend on successful restructuring 
of the country’s total public debt.

Annual Inflation             
Total annual inflation has started easing down from the highs recorded earlier in the year. As at the close of 
December 2021, annual inflation closed at 16.4% largely driven by food inflation that has remained relatively 
higher than non-food inflation over the period.  Upside risks on inflation remain around the ongoing debate from 
the policy makers to move towards cost reflective energy prices.  

Current policy direction is to bring down annual inflation to targets of 6-8% by mid-2023. This will be driven 
mostly by appreciation of the Kwacha against most convertible foreign currencies, stronger fiscal consolidation 
as well as dissipation of base effects from prices of some food items such as meat and fish.

Foreign Exchange             
Over the course of the year, most African currencies reeled as the pandemic morphed and the tide of dollar liquidity 
turned. During the period FX traders were challenged as the dollar ebbed and flowed to the developments on the 
macroeconomic, geopolitical, and monetary policy fronts. In the last two years, the USD has been subject to whippy 
price dynamics. First, the currency appreciated aggressively in response to global risk-off amid COVID uncertainties 
and lockdowns, culminating in Eurodollar market liquidity issues in 2020 and then falling back towards fair value as 
the Fed re-established swap lines and engaged in quantitative easing (QE) to stabilize bond yields.

In 2021, the prospect of Fed policy tightening against the backdrop of still loose policy in Europe and rising 
geopolitical uncertainties drove traders back into the USD.8

In the period under review, the Zambian Kwacha, strengthened by almost 27% against the USD owing to a change 
of governments, the securing of a deal with the IMF and signs that the new government is pushing ahead with 
much-needed economic reforms. Looking forward, strong local unit performance will be conditioned to positive 
policy pronouncements around fiscal, monetary or governance fronts.

Government Securities Performance           
During the period under review, the Bank of Zambia announced adjustments to the bidding thresholds. These were 
necessitated by the passage of time and need to realign changing economic fundamentals such as inflationary 
impact and drive financial inclusion.9

Average yields across all tenors of government securities declined compared to their opening positions at the 
beginning of 2021. This was mainly attributed to improved market liquidity in the period under review.
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Local Equities Market            
Domestic stocks performed exceptionally well with the Lusaka Securities Exchange finishing 2021 as the best 
performing stock market for the year. In US Dollar terms, Zambian stocks gave investors a considerable return 
as assets across the board rallied on the back of bets that the new government would right side the economy 
while at the same time putting Zambia back on a sustainable debt path.

Top-performing stocks this year have been Lafarge Cement, Zambia Sugar Plc, Real Estate Investments Zambia 
PLC, Zanaco and Copperbelt Energy, which have all gained more than 100% since the start of the year. Meanwhile, 
the laggards have been Airtel Networks, Standard Chartered and British American Tobacco, which has lost more 
than 20%. While the Omicron variant has triggered some fresh risk aversion, we remain bullish on domestic equities.

Global Equities Market           
Global Equities closed with above average returns. Current forecast is that global equities will hold their above 
average returns, even in the face of a lower U.S. contribution as tighter policy constrains the US Markets. More 
than half of global equities trade below long-term average multiples and stocks remain discounted to bonds. 
Asia may be best positioned among regions in the short run, as inflation pressures, slowing growth and tighter 
policy tempers the outlook in the U.S. and growth concerns plague Latin America. 

Currency moves could present the greatest risk. Further, as we are yet to see a complete ease of the pandemic, 
strong equity performance may be tilted towards digital transformation, healthcare innovation and sustainability.

Economic Outlook            
Over the medium term we expect the government to continue focusing on achieving fiscal and debt sustainability, 
dismantling the backlog of domestic arrears as well as restoring growth and diversification of the economy. We 
are optimistic that there will be continued positive economic sentiments to support the current government’s 
ambition to improve economic fundamentals, subject to deliberate efforts to meet some of these key milestones.
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Strategic 
Overview

Performance Objectives           
The Unit Trust’s performance objective is to outperform stated benchmarks as provided within each Key Facts 
Sheet, but with an emphasis on long-term sustainable returns.     

During the 12-month period the consolidated ABC Unit Trust delivered a total net profit of K31m. Despite the 
COVID19 related challenges of increased market volatility and associated economic sensitivities, the Manager 
continued to focus on delivering positive longer-term performance to investors. Over the year the ABC Unit 
Trust’s income return remained resilient thanks to continuous engagements with investee companies alongside 
accretive investment choices. 

Our investment choices were guided by liquidity management principles coupled with counter party credit risk 
assessments. The investment team’s primary focus was to defend the returns on the portfolio within a controlled 
risk environment.
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Portfolio Activity            
The Fund Manager’s investment strategy was to actively manage a balanced and risk adjusted portfolio with a 
resilient income profile and capital growth potential.

The portfolio is managed through an established investment process which combines a pragmatic bottom-up 
approach and a top-down understanding of the wider macroeconomic position.  The Fund Manager continues 
to invest in Financial Institutions in line with the approved regulations for Collective Investment Schemes (CIS). 
Therefore, assessing macroeconomic sensitivity helps in redirecting the investment policy to ensure we optimize 
returns on the funds, whilst closely keeping an eye on any changes in the risk tendencies across the financial sector.

As part of the monitoring and evaluation of the risks around the portfolio, we have continued to have meaningful 
engagements with the investee companies to fully understand their reported financials and strategic direction over 
the period. Further, our investment policy has deliberately taken a one-year investment horizon on all placements 
except for Equities and Government Bonds. This approach allows us to readily respond to any material shifts in 
the macroeconomic fundamentals that may negatively bear on the risk profile of the portfolio.

Suffice to say that the Fund continues to maintain a prudent balance of risk and return within its portfolio, which 
has benefited from the recent accretive portfolio realignment from term placements to risk adjusted government 
bonds. Currently the Manager remains comfortable that the current holding of term placements will be sufficient 
for liquidity management in view of the growth momentum of the Funds under Management. 

Portfolio Positioning            
The Manager aims to continue delivering strong long-term performance for unit holders while managing an 
appropriate risk profile.

To mitigate environmental risks, we increased our weight on government bonds which provided descent risk-
adjusted spreads. During the period we also rebalanced our equities to allow us reduce concentration on selected 
sectors. Our strategy on both Equity as well as Government Bonds remains a long-time strategy and the bonds 
are treated as held to maturity to counter market volatility on the portfolio.

Below is the reflection of the different counters within the equity portfolio after rebalancing a number of stocks. 
Zambia Bata shoe Company Ltd retained the biggest weight mostly due to market illiquidity during the period. 
The Fund Manager is optimistic that we will dilute holding of the stock over the coming period.

 

AEL Mining Services (Z) Plc
Copperbelt Energy Corporation Plc
First Quantum Minerals Limited
Madison Financial Services Plc
Metal Fabricators of Zambia Plc
Pamodzi
PRIMA Reinsurance Plc
Puma Energy Zambia Plc
Real Estate Investments Zambia Plc
Shoprite Holdings Limited
Standard Chartered Bank Zambia plc
Zambeef Products plc
Zambia Bata Shoe Company Plc
Zambia National Commercial Bank Plc
Zambia Sugar Plc
Zambian Breweries plc

1% 3% 3%
2% 1%

1%

1%
0%

2%
4%

7%

6

55%

3%
0%

12%
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Please note that the weighting of the equity portfolio may be altered in the medium term, subject to market 
conditions and the portfolio performance versus its benchmark the Lusaka Securities All Share Index (LASI). 
Similarly, the maturity profile of the government bonds is subject to change at maturity of these investments 
subject to prevailing market conditions.

Responsible Investing             
The Manager recognizes the important part the business plays in shaping the future of all its stakeholders. 
Therefore, investing responsibly remains at the center of all our investment decisions. 

Our investment process targets securities that are highly competitive and have sustainable income streams. Our 
strategy draws on understanding of the core functions of the financial sector players and the needs of wider 
stakeholders, which enable us to actively manage placements, anticipate and respond to market demands. We 
have a clear understanding of the drivers of future performance within the financial sector, including an in-depth 
understanding of the changing behavior patterns of its clientele and the evolving regulatory framework.

Mission: To continually invest responsibly for all our stakeholders and deliver on a sustainable business model that 
allows us positively meet all of our investors aspirations.

1. Investment 
    Management

2. Capital 
    Management

3. Enterprise Risk 
    Management

4. Investor 
    Relations

5. Sustainable 
    Investments

Objectives

To develop or 
acquire quality 
assets which
provide attractive 
cash flows, 
enhance earnings, 
and improve the 
diversification of 
the portfolio.

To maintain a 
strong financial 
position as we 
grow the portfolio.

To optimize 
opportunities within
the known and 
agreed risk
appetite levels.

To help investors 
make informed
investment 
decisions.

To run our business 
in a sustainable and 
responsible
manner.

What we do

We grow by 
developing strong 
corporate relations 
with entities that 
we seek to invest 
in and as part of 
the requirements all 
such entities must 
have demonstrated 
at least three years 
of past financial 
performance.

We aim to grow 
within a controlled 
environment by 
ensuring that the 
inherent portfolio 
risks are mitigated 
in good time to 
ensure reduction 
in capital erosion. 
We aim to maintain 
stringent single 
obligor limits 
across issuers to 
accommodate a 
wider issuer base.

We maintain an 
enterprise-wide risk
management 
process that 
identifies
material risks and 
implements key
controls to mitigate 
those risks.

We provide timely 
and transparent
information to the 
investment
community to 
apprise them of
significant 
developments 
regarding
the Trust

We incorporate 
sound 
environmental, 
social and 
governance 
practices into
our business.

2021 ANNUAL REPORT

Currently, the business is exploring possibilities of launching an ESG compliant Fund, this will help the Trust set 
tangible realizable climate change commitments. However, much will be dependent on both up and downstream 
enablers within the market.

Looking Ahead             
The Manager will seek to outperform stated benchmarks per fund. We remain aligned to the fact that our client 
demand is increasingly on outcome-oriented solutions, which provide specific result such as income or risk 
management. We fully appreciate that in all the decisions we make, delivering outperformance or achieving a 
predefined outcome increases value for our clients and builds trust in our business.
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Financial
Review

The Trust delivered another year of growth in NAV for 2021 over 2020 up by 40%. We have maintained strong 
balance sheet growth, that also provides sufficient liquidity for client requests as well as funding for our new 
opportunities, including to finance growth initiatives where necessary. 

For the year just ended, the following were the net profits and annualized returns across all the portfolios that 
we managed during the year.

Total Expenses:            
Total expenses were mostly driven by Management Fees computed as a percentage of the Net Asset Value of 
the total Funds under Management.  Withholding Tax relates to tax paid on all management fees computed for 
the fund management. On the other hand other transaction costs relates to the cost incurred for the facilitating

ABC Unit Trust 2021 Return (%) 2020 Return (%) Annual Growth

Balanced Fund K21.4m (26%) K14.4m 49%

ZMW High Yield Fund K5.1m (32%) K3.6m 42%

Money Market Fund K2.4m (14%) K1.5m 60%

US Dollar Fund $48,519 (3.5%) $36,058 -42%

US Dollar High Yield Fund K0.7m (6%) K0.6m 17%

Gratuity Fund K0.7m (17%) K0.6m 17%

Equity Fund K0 (-6%) (K1.1m) >100%

Total Net Profits K30.9m (25%) K20.9m 48%

During the year    
we did not see   

any tax changes 
that may impact 

on investors 
returns. Total 

income obtained 
by investors       

remain exempt     
of all income tax.

“

“
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In Million Kwacha 2021 % of FuM 2020 % of FuM

Total Consolidated Expenses K11,911,653 5.44% K7,651,084 4.80%

Fund Management Fees K6,178,180 2.82% K3,874,203 2.43%

Withholding Tax K2,676,767 1.22% K2,204,036 1.38%

CIS Levy K280,535 0.13% K182,252 0.11%

Trustee Fees K336,641 0.15% K219,748 0.14%

Custody Fees K347,837 0.16% K257,047 0.16%

Audit Fees K134,386 0.06% K120,000 0.08%

AGM Expenses K110,850 0.05% K63,853 0.04%

Bank Charges K20,795 0.01% K11,680 0.01%

Redemption Charges K2,083 0.00% K8,592 0.01%

Credit Losses (IFRS 9) K1,668,285 0.76% K674,170 0.42%

Other transaction expenses K155,295 0.07% K35,504 0.02%

some of the fund expenses. For the period under review these were driven by a high demand for clients seeking 
to swap from Kwacha to USD and vice versa during the time when the currency was weak and after. The total 
costs remain relatively in line with prior year and management is keen on keeping costs regularly in check to 
maximize investor value for all Funds that we manage.

The table below summarizes the total expenses on the portfolio:

Withholding Tax            
The Fund is required to withhold tax on all Government securities on the portfolio. The growth of the WHT line 
is attributed to the movements in the government securities between the two periods. 

Income Tax Considerations for investors         
During the year we did not see any tax changes that may impact on investors returns. Total income obtained by 
investors remain exempt of all income tax. This makes investments in unit trusts very competitive and tax efficient. 

Expected Credit Losses (ECL)          
Movement in the expected credit losses is largely driven by changes in macroeconomic fundamentals. As part 
of the input to the computations we benchmark the portfolio and its inherent risks around inflation, current yields 
on placements as well as other environmental risk tendencies, most of which were favorable compared to prior 
year. Therefore, over the period the movement in the portfolio was largely attributed to the closing balance sheet 
position of Funds under Management relative to the end period position for 2020. At the end of the financial year 
(2021) most risk tendencies were largely stable with a positive outlook.  

New Accounting Rules Adopted          
During the period under review there were no new accounting rules that were adopted that may have a bearing 
on the financials.
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Portfolio 
Review 

Balanced Fund             
This is our growth Fund, and it aims at achieving sustainable long-term risk adjusted returns over a period. 
Recommended investment period in this Fund is 3-4 years. It remains an ideal Fund for investors that seek to 
grow capital over a longer period.

This Fund offers steady long-term investment returns and is ideal for investors seeking growth over the 
short to medium term. It balances Capital growth, income generation and investment risks.

Investment Strategy: The fund aims to achieve the primary performance objective by investing in 
longer dated fixed income instruments. The fund invests principally in GRZ Bonds, Treasury Bills, listed 
Corporate Bonds and 364 bank deposits. The fund has a minimum recommended investment period of 
six (6) months.

YEAR 2021 2020 2019 2018 3YR CAGR

Fund Size K147m K99m K78m K54m 39% 

Annual Returns 25% 22% 17% 14% 21% Weighted Avg

Benchmark (Annual CPI %) 16.4% 19.2% 11.7% 7.9% 13.8% Average

Real Returns 8.6% 3% 6% 6% 7.2% Average

Note: Please consult the latest Fund Disclosure as provided on the Key Facts Sheet by visting our website 
www.abcassetmanagement.com for more information about the fund.

4 Year Perfomance
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The fund outperformed its benchmark. It also continues to attract investors seeking growth over the medium 
to long term. Higher interest yields were mostly attributed to longer dated securities that formed the bedrock of 
the Fund’s asset allocation. 

Our outlook for 2022 is such that interest yields on the Fund will come much lower than 2021. This is attributed 
to lower average yields on the shorter dated securities. The Manager’s current projection is for the Fund to close 
at yield of 17% by the end of 2022. This will be mostly anchored on the underlying book of government securities 
that forms larger investment exposure on the Fund.

Money Market Fund            
This is our flagship unit trust and offers preservation of capital over the very short term. The Fund aims at generating 
a sound level of income and achieving higher returns than a bank savings deposits and aims at insulating clients 
against real loss of their money.

The fund aims at investing at providing investor sound level of income higher than on ordinary bank 
savings deposits and protecting investors against inflationary risks. The Fund is ideal for short term 
emergency funding.

Investment Strategy: The fund aims to invest in highly liquid short term money markets and where liquidity 
needs allow may invest in selected fixed income money market instruments.

YEAR 2021 2020 2019 2018 3YR CAGR

Fund Size K21m K16m K22m K26m -8%

Annual Returns 12% 13% 12% 4% 10% Weighted Avg

Benchmark (Annual CPI %) 16.4% 19.2% 11.7% 7.9% 13.8% Average 

Real Returns -4.4% -6.2% 0.3% -3.9% -3.8% Average 

Note: Please consult the latest Fund Disclosure as provided on the Key Facts Sheet by visting our website 
www.abcassetmanagement.com for more information about the fund.

4 Year Perfomance
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The fund has continued to deliver steady growth on investor’s funds providing descent spread over ordinary 
bank deposits. Following the escalation in inflation from the second half of 2020 we increased our investment 
allocation to government securities over the 3–4-year tenors. This strategy was to smoothen out the yield curve 
and make investment returns on the money market fund competitive, despite serving clients’ short-term needs. 
This strategy was backed up by a review of the portfolio that showed that most clients were holding sticky funds 
over a longer investment period, thus reducing liquidity demands on the Fund.  

Our 2022 outlook is such that the Money Market Fund will be subject to lower reinvestments yield rates on shorter 
dated securities. However, the Fund Manager hopes to leverage off the government securities to help smoothen 
out the yields on the Fund.

US Dollar Fund             
Our US Dollar Fund continues to deliver consistent positive results for investors, providing preservation of US 
Dollar denominated capital invested

The fund has similarly delivered consistently above US inflation over the last four years. Average yields on the 
US Dollar Funds have been 3.5% ahead of average annual US inflation of 1.68%. Our investment strategy has 
been to scan the local market for any USD denominated debt and money market securities. As the Fund grows 
the Manager hopes to venture into offshore USD placements as a way of widening the issuer base. This will 
however be appropriately governed with all requisite approvals obtained from all stakeholders.

The fund offers preservation of US Dollar denominated capital and accessibility over the very short term 
by generating sound level of income higher than returns in a USD bank account.

Investment Strategy: The fund aims at investing in regulated Zambian money market securities 
denominated in USD which are issued by financial and other corporate institutions.

YEAR 2021 2020 2019 2018 3YR CUMULATIVE 
%

Fund Size $1.4m $1.2m $0.9m $5.6m -37% (3YR CAGR)

Annual Returns 4.2% 3.5% 3.7% 3.2% 3.4% Average

Benchmark (Annual CPI %) 4.7% 1.2% 1.8% 2.4% 2.5% Average

Real Returns -0.5% 2.3% 1.9% 0.8% 0.9% Average

Note: Please consult the latest Fund Disclosure as provided on the Key Facts Sheet by visting our website 
www.abcassetmanagement.com for more information about the fund.

4 Year Perfomance
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In the period under review, the USD debt market declined owing to the increased hedging costs on the USD 
transactions. This posed a unique challenge for the deployment of US dollars over the period. The Manager is 
however hopeful that with the current stability on the currency the local market might see a buildup of increased 
USD denominated debt issuances that will drive market for the onward deployment of US Dollars.

Our outlook, the risk of inflationary pressures is making central banks nervous. Inflation has become a public 
concern, now amplified by energy price shocks. Market consensus is that the Fed might start to raise interest 
rates in September 2022 or much earlier than that. This may mean a positive trajectory for interest yields for 
investors within this Fund.

US Dollar High Yield Fund           
Our US Dollar High Yield Fund closed with a stellar performance over the ordinary USD Fund. The fund attracts 
investments with a minimum of $50,000 and offers a much longer investment period with a minimum holding 
period of one year. The USD High Yield Fund similarly offers preservation of US Dollar denominated capital that 
is invested. 

Looking ahead, the risk of inflationary pressures is making central banks nervous. Inflation has become a public 
concern, now amplified by energy price shocks. Market consensus is that the Fed might start to raise interest 
rates in September 2022 or much earlier than that. This may mean a positive trajectory for interest yields for 
investors within this Fund.

ZMW High Yield Fund            
Our ZMW High Yield Fund is suitable for most high value clients that want to have an actively managed portfolio 
that seek to mimic the performance of the bond market. It provides investors with a much more predictable 
returns over their investment period. It allows investors to assess annually their investment goals and reset their 
goals whenever appropriate.

The fund offers preservation of US Dollar denominated capital and accessibility over the very short term 
by generating sound level of income higher than returns in a USD bank account.

Investment Strategy: The fund aims to invest in highly liquid short term money markets and where 
liquidity needs allow may invest in selected fixed income money market instruments.

YEAR 2021 2020 2019 2018 2YR CUMULATIVE 
%

Fund Size $0.8m $0.7m $0.5m N/A 26%

Annual Returns 6.9% 7.8% 6.1% N/A 7.0% Average

Benchmark (Annual CPI %) 4.7% 1.2% 1.8% N/A 2.6% Average

Real Returns 2.2% 6.6% 4.3% N/A 4.4% Average

Note: Please consult the latest Fund Disclosure as provided on the Key Facts Sheet by visting our website 
www.abcassetmanagement.com for more information about the fund.
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Our outlook for the average yields on this Fund will be such that the Fund will close the year at a yield of 19%. 
The Fund Manager hopes to leverage off the government securities to help smoothen out the yields on the Fund.

Equity Fund             
This Fund offers investors sustainable risk adjusted returns over the medium to long term by investing in Lusaka 
Securities Exchange (LuSE) listed equities.  

 It provides investors with a much more predictable returns over their investment period. It allows 
investors to assess annually their investment goals and reset their goals whenever appropriate.

Investment Strategy: The fund is actively managed and invests in LuSE-listed equities. The 
investment team applies a bottom up, stock picking based approach, predicated on strong conviction 
ideas and attractive relative valuations.  We also consider other factors such as market capitalization 
and liquidity when constructing the portfolio. Exposure to shares will not exceed 75% of the fund at any 
point in time and the fund could include assets in liquid form as well as other regulated money market 
instruments. The fund has no offshore exposure.

YEAR 2021 2020 2019 2018 3YR CAGR %

Fund Size K5.6m K5.6m K5.7m K8.0 -11% 

Annual Returns 1.0% -14% -15% 20% 0.1% Average

Benchmark (Annual CPI %) 54.9% -25.5% 0% -1.5% 6.98% Average

Note: Please consult the latest Fund Disclosure as provided on the Key Facts Sheet by visting our website 
www.abcassetmanagement.com for more information about the fund.

It provides investors with much more predictable returns over their investment period. It allows investors 
to assess annually their investment goals and reset their goals whenever appropriate.

Investment Strategy: The fund invests in high yielding debt instruments and government bonds.

YEAR 2021 2020 2019 2018 2YR CAGR %   

Fund Size K46.9m K21.6m K8.9m N/A 129%   

Annual Returns 33% 22% 17% N/A 28% Weighted Avg

Benchmark (Annual CPI %) 16.4% 19.2% 11.7% N/A 17.8% Average

Real Returns 16.6% 2.8% 5.3% N/A 10.2% Average

Note: Please consult the latest Fund Disclosure as provided on the Key Facts Sheet by visting our website 
www.abcassetmanagement.com for more information about the fund.
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The ABC Equity Fund performance over the last four years was impacted by the market performance that took 
a tumble towards the end of 2019. Additionally, due to market illiquidity we could not readily wash away some of 
the portfolio risks. Our strategy going forward remains on growth for most of the equities we have on our portfolio. 
During the year the investment committee approved new concentration limits to help us rebalance the portfolio 
and mirror as much as possible the Lusaka Securities All Share Index (LASI). Going by the current performance 
of the equities we remain bullish on the outlook of our equities going into 2022.

4 Year Perfomance
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Principal Risk Possible Consequences Mitigation

Reputational Risk This may arise from poor conduct, 
judgement, or risk events due to 
weaknesses in systems or controls. 
Our reputation as a business may be 
impacted by any of our key risks and 
for conduct and regulatory risks which 
may materialize.

At the center of all the decisions we 
make we consider possibilities of 
reputational risks, and this applies 
even at the point when we consider 
making any changes to our strategies 
or operating models.

Additional capital investment has 
been taken to upgrade our systems 
and increase on the efficiency of our 
processes and platforms.

Investment 
Performance Risk

There is a risk that portfolios may not 
meet their investment objectives or that 
there is a failure to deliver consistent 
performance, resulting in clients moving 
assets away from the portfolio, or a 
failure to attract new funds.

We have clearly defined investment 
policies and processes that have been 
designed to help us to deliver across 
different portfolio expectations.

Further, the investment committee sits 
every month to review and assess for 
any inherent risks on the portfolio and 
decisions are taken timeously to allow 
for increased capital preservation and 
maximize on investment returns.

Additionally, security perfection for 
all investment made is an ongoing 
feature. This is usually coupled with 
increased and regular business 
engagement meetings with various 
issuers to discuss the performance 
of the investee companies.

Risk
Management  

The Board monitors, evaluates and mitigates risks to ensure that appropriate measures are in place to minimize 
the likely occurrence and impact of those risks identified. 

There may be additional risks and uncertainties that are not known to the Board and there are risks and uncertainties 
which are currently deemed to be less material, which may also adversely impact performance. The framework 
provides reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that principal risks are managed to an acceptable level. The 
risk framework is constructed to identify and navigate the intrinsic risks within the portfolio.

Below are some of the principal risks and uncertainties, their possible consequences and mitigating actions.



35

ABC ASSET MANAGEMENT

Financial 
Instrument Risk

We face market, credit and capital risks 
from the instruments we manage as part 
of our Funds under Management. The 
impact of financial instrument risks on 
our business may negatively affect our 
earnings, balance sheet or our ability to 
invest in our business.

Financial risk is limited by the 
regulatory environment. The Securities 
Act of Zambia has strict and specific 
regulations as to what instruments 
may and may not be held by the Unit 
Trusts. 

Each Unit Trust is also governed by 
a Trust Deed, which commits it to a 
specific investment objective.  The 
Trust Deed’s investment objective 
is further refined into an investment 
policy which requires the fund 
manager to manage the unit trust in 
accordance with the specified policy. 
As far as possible, compliance limits 
are built into the daily pricing systems 
and processes of the fund manager 
and are checked and reportedly on at 
least annually.

The Securities Exchange Commission 
(SEC) gives initial approval for each 
Unit Trust and reviews compliance 
of the Management of the Unity 
Trust at least annually. Daily checks 
are performed by the independent 
Trustee/Custodian to ensure 
compliance with investment policies 
and limits specified in the respective 
Trust Deeds and the regulations 
determined under the Securities Act.

We manage capital and liquidity through 
Board and Investment Committee set 
limits. We monitor our credit and 
counterparty exposure in our regular 
monthly portfolio review meetings 
held by the Investment Committee 
and during quarterly Board meetings.

Product Risk There is a risk that our product offering is 
not suitably diversified or does not provide 
access to strategies that will help clients 
to meet their objectives. There is also 
the risk that the product liquidity is not 
consistent with the product description, 
or the redemption requirements of clients.

Through the investment committee 
the business tracks and assesses 
the performance of all the Unit Trust 
portfolios through their lifecycle. Any 
leading indicators are assessed, and 
appropriate decisions are taken to 
reposition the Funds. Further, the 
committee considers and monitors 
liquidity on an ongoing basis.

Business 
Concentration Risk

The risk that insufficient diversification in 
distribution channels, products, clients, 
markets or income streams could impact 
our business.

We have a wide distr ibution and 
investment channels through the 
branch network of the Atlas Mara 
Zambia. We also continue to explore 
other prospects on the development 
of strategic relationships and acquisitions 
to enable further diversification of 
distribution channels.
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Our Service
Culture

As a business we have continually sought to improve in our customer service delivery as well as distribution 
channels. We have continued to aim at being the best at customer excellence in order to drive a seamless customer 
experience. We have adopted the parent company’s service charter which sets a high standard of customer care 
and service for all our customers, all the time and at all our touch points. 

As part of our service commitments, we aim at not taking for granted any of our clients. That is why we nurture 
direct relationships with all our clients, which allows us to understand more fully their changing needs, resulting 
in better outcomes and improved client longevity. 

In the distribution of our products, we have ably leveraged the wide branch network for Atlas Mara Zambia.
This has to a large extent helped us to serve all unit holders wherever they may be. Additionally, for those that 
signed email indemnities we have been able to effectively attend to all of your requests and queries via 
investmentszm@bancabc.co.zm.

How did we perform in 2021? 

2021 retained its unique challenges of creating social distancing which forced us to allow some of our staff to 
work remotely. This created an increased hybrid of service touch points with instructions being received via 
emails, physically and in other forms. As a result, we might have had missed instructions that may have brought 
displeasure to some of our esteemed clients. 

Effective 2022, we launched our online portal that will allow customers to have easy access to their investment 
accounts using the internet. However, we appeal to all our clients to ensure that they verify with the team that all 
KYC files is up to date. Management has put strict measures to ensure that online access will be granted to only 
customers whose KYC files are updated in order to allow us to manage the current KYC remediation exercise.

Complaints management 

Individual unit holders seeking to lodge complaints can do so using our email address investmentszm@bancabc.co.zm 
alternatively visit our website https://abcassetmanagement.com/contact/ . 

As part of our ongoing customer service realignment, we wish to remind all of our clients of the following rights 
enshrined within our service charter.

(i) To be served with respect, professionally and timely.

(ii) To complain if they are unhappy with our services.

(iii) To provide customer information, confidentiality, and privacy.

(iv) To receive updates and changes concerning their accounts.

(v) To access our facilities and services in a manner that meets their needs.

It is our earnest desire that as a business we will provide exceptional customer service care every time we interact 
with customers. As such we promise to serve you with honesty and integrity as well as being always friendly 
and efficient.
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Ms. Lupupa Mulenga joins the ABC Asset Management Team.

She joins as a Client Portfolio Manager and will be in charge of select client portfolios. Lupupa is an experienced 
client relationship manager with over seven (7) years of experience within the banking industry. 

Prior to joining ABC Asset Management, she worked as Relationship Officer within Atlas Mara Zambia where 
she managed client portfolios across a wide range of banking products and services.

She describes herself as “goal oriented, open and eager to learn and is excited to join the investment side of 
the financial sector.”

The Business is very confident that this addition to the team, will help us continue to align our priorities and 
remain true to our commitment of providing exceptional customer service every time we interact with our clients.

Introducing
Ms. Lupupa
Mulenga Goal oriented, 

open, eager to 
learn and excited                 

to join the 
investment side    
of the financial 

sector.

“

“
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Investing is one 
of the smartest 

financial decisions 
a person can make 

to manage his 
wealth and achieve 
long-term financial 

security.

“

“
Hints and Tips
on Investing with
Mrs. Mwaba
Ngenda

Navigating Common Investment Pitfalls

Everyone makes mistakes at some point in their lives. Some are relatively minor while others could be long-
lasting consequences. 

Making a mistake with your investments could set you back hundreds, if not thousands of Kwachas. Some errors 
are immediately obvious, whereas others might not become apparent until much later in life when the damage 
may be harder to reverse. Therefore, we thought of sharing some common traits that can help you minimize 
making errors that may impact you negatively and in turn reduce your net worth.

Investments without a goal

It is often said, an investor without investment objectives is like a traveler without a destination. Investing is one of 
the smartest financial decisions a person can make to manage his wealth and achieve long-term financial security. 

However, it is quite common for most investors to start off on their investment journey like a traveler who 
undertakes a long and arduous journey without knowing which direction, where the next filling station will be or 
when they will disembark. Taking this approach with your finances often makes investing difficult and could affect 
your consistency towards your financial goals. Further, it presents unique challenges for us as your investment 
managers as we may not be able to easily gauge if we are assisting you to meet your objectives or not.  

Therefore, we have always encouraged our clients to start with a strong why. This will encapsulate your financial 
goals, what and when you want to spend your money on in the future. 

Goal based investing provides clarity to outcomes and helps you to steady your course when financial storms 
strike. You will also be able to track and monitor your progress as well as easily challenge or redirect your plans. 
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“The best way to measure your investing success is not by whether you’re beating the market but by whether 
you’ve put in place a financial plan and a behavioral discipline that are likely to get you where you want to go.” 
Benjamin Graham.

Invest in time

Warren Buffet once stated, “The rich invest in time, the poor invest in money.” When it comes to investing, time 
is your most important partner. Without appreciating time, you will not appreciate your investments. Note that 
time is the best partner to reward you on your investment and help you meet your objectives. 

In view of the above, every investor must be fully aware of the power of compounding. Compounding simply 
means making money on your original investment, as well as on the gains made in the following years (i.e. growth 
on growth over time). If you leave your investment over a long period of time, the investment not only grows 
each year, but grows exponentially. This interest is called compound interest and is the key to long term growth 
and wealth.

Depending on your investment horizon you may want to always take note that regularly changing your investment 
goals may cost you money with time. Therefore, you would do well to exercise patience as you monitor your 
portfolio over the medium to long time. 

Always remember, you cannot save time for future use. But you can invest it for the future you.

Seek Expert Advice 

An investment in knowledge pays the best interest. (Benjamin Franklin) When it comes to investing, nothing will 
pay off more than educating yourself. Do the necessary research and analysis before making any investment 
decisions. 

As your Client Portfolio Managers, we are at your disposal if you seek to cross reference anything on the available 
investment options. Note that as part of the investment code of ethics we have a duty of loyalty to our clients 
and must act with reasonable care and exercise prudent judgment. We also endeavor to act for the benefit of 
our clients and place clients’ interests before our employer’s or our own interests. Therefore, this gives you the 
investor credible access to get advice from us on any portfolio realignments that you seek to make.

The market is currently filled with a lot of noise and commentaries on investments. It takes skill to decipher the 
right sounds and silence off the noise. As part of our portfolio management we have continued to aim at assisting 
drive the required information and investment advisory that will help you to make informed choices. Please feel 
free to always get in touch with any of our team members for any expert advise that you may seek.

In conclusion, we can only reiterate that we fully recognize that we have an important role to play in shaping your 
financial future. Therefore, be rest assured that at the core of what we do are a set of values focused on doing 
the right thing for our clients, our people and the community we serve.
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Trustee’s
Report

I am pleased to introduce the Trustee’s report for 2021, in which we describe the governance arrangements of 
the ABC Unit Trust, the operation of the Fund Manager and Custodian and how the Fund Manager discharged 
his responsibilities during the year.

Unit Trusts are governed by a Trust Deed. The Trustee holds the deposited property upon trust for the benefit of 
unit holders. The objective of the Trust is to provide a means whereby investors can obtain undivided participation 
in a diversified portfolio of financially sound assets approved by the Management Company and the Trustee and 
held in custody via the Custodian bank.

The Securities Exchange Commission (SEC) gives initial approval for each Unit Trust and reviews compliance of 
the Management of the Unity Trust at least annually. Regular checks are performed by the independent Trustee/
Custodian as well as the compliance with investment policies and limitations specified in the respective Trust 
Deeds and the regulations determined under the Securities Act.

Governance and Operation of the Unit Trusts         
ABC Unit Trust is an open-ended collective investment vehicle established by the Trust Deed whose objective is 
to act as a formal vehicle for investors to have their money pooled together and have professional fund managers 
invest in securities on their behalf.

Gifts and Donations            
The Trust did not make any donations over the last three years.

Corporate Governance          
The Trustees continue to be committed to high standards of corporate governance, which are fundamental to 
discharging their responsibilities. The Trustees apply integrity, principles of good governance and accountability 
throughout its activities.

The Trustees 
continue to be 
committed to 

high standards 
of corporate 

governance, which 
are fundamental to 
discharging their 
responsibilities.

“

“
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The table below shows the number of times the Fund Manager, Trustee and Custodian met to review the 
performance of the ABC Unit Trust and address any key concerns that could have been there.

Custody of Assets            
The primary role of the Custodian is to maintain possession of investments owned by the ABC Unit Trust Fund. 
The Custodian effects collection of dividends and interest earned. The Custodian facilitates the collection of 
proceeds from matured securities. The function of the Custodian is to minimize the risk of loss or theft of the 
Unit Trust Assets.

The custodian for ABC Unit Trust Fund is Stanbic Bank Zambia Nominees. As confirmed by the Custodian’s 
report, all the investment assets reported in the financial statements of ABC Unit Trust Fund for the year ended 
31 December 2019 were in custody.

Auditors             
The Unit Trust’s auditors, Messrs. HLB Zambia, have indicated their willingness to continue in office. A resolution 
proposing their reappointment and authorizing the Trustees to fix their remuneration will be put forward at the 
next Annual General Meeting (AGM).

AMG Global Trust Limited

Trustee

Date:

TRUSTEE CUSTODIAN FUND MANAGER

Possible 4 Times 4 Times 4 Times

Actual 4 Time 3 Times 4 Times
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December 2021 
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AFRICAN BANKING CORPORATION UNIT TRUST FUND        
FUND MANAGER’S STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY        
for the year ended 31 December 2021

The Securities Act requires the Fund Managers to prepare financial statements for each financial year that give 
a true and fair view of the state of the ABC Unit Trust and of the profit or loss for that year. In preparing these 
financial statements, the Fund Managers have selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them 
consistently, made judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent and followed the applicable 
accounting standards. The Fund Managers are responsible for ensuring that the ABC Unit Trust keeps proper 
accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the ABC Unit 
Trust. The Fund Managers are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the ABC Unit Trust and for taking 
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

In accordance with the Securities Act, we the Fund Managers of ABC Unit Trust are of the opinion that:

a) the statement of financial position is drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of the state of the affairs of 
the ABC Unit Trust as at 31 December 2021;

b) the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income is drawn up so as to give a true and fair view 
of the profit of the ABC Unit Trust for the year ended 31 December 2021;

c) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the ABC Unit Trust will be able to pay its debts as and when they 
fall due; and

d) the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards 
and the requirements of the Securities Act of Zambia.

The Fund Managers are also responsible for the ABC Unit Trust’s system of internal financial control. These controls 
are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance as to the reliability of the financial statements 
and to adequately safeguard, verify and maintain accountability of assets, and to prevent and detect misstatement 
and loss. Nothing has come to the attention of the Fund Managers to indicate that any material breakdown in the 
functioning of these controls, procedures and systems has occurred during the year under review.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, since the Fund Managers have every 
reason to believe that the ABC Unit Trust has adequate resources in place to continue in operation for the 
foreseeable future.

b) the statement of profit or loss is drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of the profit of the Unit Trust for 
the year ended 31 December 2021;

c) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Unit Trust will be able to pay their debts as and when they 
fall due; and

d) the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards 
and the requirements of the Securities Act of Zambia.

The financial statements which appear on pages 8 to 75 were approved for issue by the Fund Manager, and 
signed on their behalf by:

Mr Nicholas Kabaso            
African Banking Corporation Investments Services Limited        
(Fund Manager)     

Date:
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS         
TO THE UNIT HOLDERS OF AFRICAN BANKING CORPORATION UNIT TRUST FUND

Opinion             
We have audited the financial statements of African Banking Corporation Unit Trust Fund (“the Unit Trusts), 
which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021, and the statement of profit or loss 
and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then 
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Unit Trusts at 31 
December 2021, and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and the requirements of the Securities Act of Zambia.

Basis for Opinion            
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
section of our report. We are independent of the Unit Trust in accordance with the International Ethics Standards 
Board for Accountants’ code of ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) that are relevant to our audit of 
the financial statements, and we have fulfilled our other responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters            
Key Audit Matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit 
of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion 
on these matters.

Key Audit Matter

Global in Reach, Local in Touch

2nd floor Saturnia House Plot 6392 Dundza Chisidza Road, Longacres, Lusaka, Zambia.      
(Telephone: +260 211 294441. (Mobile: +260 978 980558 *E-mail: shuko@accamail.com shuko@hlb.co.zm Website: http://www.hlbi.com

HLB Reliance is an independent member of HLB International. A world-wide network of accounting firms and business advisers HLB 
International Limited registered in England No. 2181222 Limited by Guarantee

Recognition of revenue   
Overstatement of revenue is considered to be a 
significant audit risk as it is the key driver of returns 
to investors.

How the matter was addressed in the audit.
We evaluated and tested the controls relating to 
revenue recognition. Analytical procedures were 
performed linking the revenue recorded during the 
year to the receivable balance at the year end. Further 
substantive tests were performed checking the receipt 
of interest payments to the bank statements.

The cut-off around the year end was tested to check 
that income is recognised in the correct accounting 
period. The accounting policy for revenue is outlined 
in note 3.2, and a breakdown of revenue is presented 
in note 5.
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AFRICAN BANKING CORPORATION UNIT TRUST FUND        
REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS         
for the year ended 31 December 2021

Carrying amount of cash and listed investments 
The Unit Trust’s portfolio of cash and listed investments 
makes up 99.24% of total assets (by value) and is 
considered to be the key driver of operations and 
performance results. We do not consider cash or 
listed investments to be at high risk of significant 
misstatement, or to be subject to a significant level 
of judgement.

How the matter was addressed in the audit.  
Our procedures over the existence, completeness 
and valuation of the Unit Trusts’s portfolio of cash 
and listed investments included, but were not limited 
to:

• agreeing the valuation of 100% of listed investments 
to externally quoted prices; and • agreeing 100% of 
cash and listed investment holdings to independently 
received third party confirmations.

Fund Managers’ responsibilities for the financial statements

The Fund Managers are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs), and for such internal control as the Fund Managers determine 
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Fund Managers are responsible for assessing the Unit Trusts’ ability 
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless the Fund Managers either intend to cease operations of the Unit Trust, or 
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Fund Managers are responsible for overseeing the Trusts’ financial reporting.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error 
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence 
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Overview of the scope of the audit

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

● Identify and assess the risks of material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
   procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
   a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than  
   for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, 
   or the override of internal controls.

● Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
   appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the        
   entity’s internal accounting controls.
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AFRICAN BANKING CORPORATION UNIT TRUST FUND        
REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS         
for the year ended 31 December 2021

Evaluate the completeness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by the Fund Managers.

● Conclude on the appropriateness of the Fund Managers’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, base  
   on the audit evidence obtained, determine whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions  
   that may cast significant doubt on the Unit Trust’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a 
   material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in 
   the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our auditor’s opinion. Our conclusions 
   are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.

● Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, 
    and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves 
   fair presentation.

We communicate with Fund Managers regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the 
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal accounting controls that we 
identify during our audit.

We also provide Fund Managers with a statement that we have complied with the relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably 
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on other legal requirements          
Section 45 (1) of the Securities Act of Zambia requires that in carrying out our audit, we consider whether the Unit 
Trust has kept proper records and registers as required by the Act. In our opinion, the Unit Trust has maintained 
proper accounting and other records as required by the Act, so far as it appears from our examination of these 
records.

In accordance with Section 45 Part III paragraph 18 of the Securities (Accounting and financial requirements) 
rules of the Securities Act, we report that in our opinion:

● the annual financial statements for the Unit Trust for the year ended 31 December 2021 have been properly 
   prepared in accordance with these rules.

● in the case of the statement of financial position a true and fair view is given of the state of affairs of the Unit 
   Trust as at the year end.

● in the case of the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income a true and fair view is given of 
   the profit for the year ended.

● the Unit Trust has, throughout the financial year, kept proper accounting records in accordance with the 
   requirements of the rules.
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AFRICAN BANKING CORPORATION UNIT TRUST FUND        
REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS         
for the year ended 31 December 2021

● the statement of financial position and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income are in 
   agreement with the Unit Trusts accounting records.

● we have obtained all information and explanation which to the best of our knowledge and belief are necessary     
   for the purposes of our audit.

● the Unit Trust has maintained throughout the year systems to enable identify documents of title, or documents 
   evidencing title, to the securities held in the interest for the Unit Holders in accordance with rule 29 of the 
   Securities Act of Zambia (conduct of business) rules.

● the Unit Trust has, throughout the year, kept the Unit Holders money properly segregated in accordance with 
   Part IV;

● the Unit Trust was in compliance with the requirements of rule 29 of Securities (conduct of business) rules as 
   at 31 December 2021.

HLB Zambia Audit Services Limited

Masuzyo Mulenga FCCA,FZICA
Partner
AUD/F008662      Date:

Global in Reach, Local in Touch

2nd floor Saturnia House Plot 6392 Dundza Chisidza Road, Longacres, Lusaka, Zambia.      
(Telephone: +260 211 294441. (Mobile: +260 978 980558 *E-mail: shuko@accamail.com shuko@hlb.co.zm Website: http://www.hlbi.com

HLB Reliance is an independent member of HLB International. A world-wide network of accounting firms and business advisers HLB 
International Limited registered in England No. 2181222 Limited by Guarantee
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AFRICAN BANKING CORPORATION UNIT TRUST FUND
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the year ended  31 December 2021

2021 2020
NOTES ZMW ZMW

Income 
Interest from held to maturity investment 5 43,745,212 28,579,925
Losses arising from changes in fair value of shares 7 102,492 (928,085) 
Dividends 5(I) 67,885 77,161
Other income 5(I) 6,384 786,957

Total operating income 43,921,974 28,515,958       

Operating expenses
Management fees Sch I (6,178,180) (3,874,203) 
Administrative expenses Sch I (5,049,231) (3,300,086) 
Custodian fees Sch I (347,837) (257,047) 
Trustee fees Sch I (336,641) (219,748) 

Total operating expenses (11,911,889)   (7,651,084)       

Profit for the year 32,010,085    20,864,874 

Other comprehensive income

Foreign exchange translation gains Sch I (9,234,267)     9,561,021

Total comprehensive income for the year 22,775,818    30,425,895       

AFRICAN BANKING CORPORATION UNIT TRUST FUND
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the year ended  31 December 2021

2021 2020
NOTES ZMW ZMW

Income 
Interest from held to maturity investment 5 43,745,212 28,579,925
Losses arising from changes in fair value of shares 7 102,492 (928,085) 
Dividends 5(I) 67,885 77,161
Other income 5(I) 6,384 786,957

Total operating income 43,921,974 28,515,958       

Operating expenses
Management fees Sch I (6,178,180) (3,874,203) 
Administrative expenses Sch I (5,049,231) (3,300,086) 
Custodian fees Sch I (347,837) (257,047) 
Trustee fees Sch I (336,641) (219,748) 

Total operating expenses (11,911,889)   (7,651,084)       

Profit for the year 32,010,085    20,864,874 

Other comprehensive income

Foreign exchange translation gains Sch I (9,234,267)     9,561,021

Total comprehensive income for the year 22,775,818    30,425,895       

AFRICAN BANKING CORPORATION UNIT TRUST FUND      
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME   
for the year ended 31 December 2021
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2021 2020

ZMW ZMW
ASSETS
Held to maturity investments 6 229,820,577 169,498,824
Bank and cash balances 8 17,671,092 5,867,065
Equity investments 7 5,153,320 5,387,212
Accounts receivable 9 1,132,109 1,388,473

Total Assets 253,777,099 182,141,574

UNIT HOLDERS FUNDS AND LIABILITIES 

Unit holders  fund 
Unit holders investment 216,453,114 160,662,853

Liabilities
Deferred income 10 35,314,790 20,027,603
Accounts payable 10 2,009,195 1,451,118

37,323,985 21,478,721

Total unit holders funds and liabilities 253,777,099 182,141,574

Mr Nicholas Kabaso Mrs Joyce Muwo-Mwansa
African Banking Corporation 
Investments Services Limited
(Fund Manager) (Chairperson)

Date: Date:

The financial statements on pages 8 to 75 were approved by the Fund Manager and were singed on its behalf by:

African Banking Corporation 
Investments Services Limited

2021 ANNUAL REPORT

AFRICAN BANKING CORPORATION UNIT TRUST FUND       
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION        
as at 31 December 2021
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Units Retained
value earnings Total
ZMW ZMW ZMW

Balance at 31 December 2019 96,328,843 38,788,903 135,117,746
Issue of units during the year 133,764,496 -                       133,764,496
Redemption of units during the year (138,645,282)      -                       (138,645,282)      
Profit for the year -                       20,864,874 20,864,874
Foreign exchange translation gains -                       9,561,021 9,561,021

Balance at 31 December 2020 91,448,057 69,214,798 160,662,855
Issue of units during the year 168,154,802     -                       168,154,802     
Redemption of units during the year (135,140,361)    -                       (135,140,361)    
Profit for the year -                       32,010,085      32,010,085       
Foreign exchange translation gains -                       (9,234,267)       (9,234,267)       

Balance at 31 December 2021 124,462,498     91,990,616      216,453,114     

AFRICAN BANKING CORPORATION UNIT TRUST FUND      
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN THE UNIT HOLDERS FUND      
for the year ended 31 December 2021
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2021 2020
NOTES ZMW ZMW

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit for the year 32,010,085 20,864,872
Items not involving movement of funds:
Changes in fair value of shares 7 (102,492)         928,085

Operating cashflows before movement in working capital 31,907,594     21,792,957       

Movements in working capital:
Decrease in account receivables balances 9 256,364          (441,289)          
(Decrease)/Increase in accounts payable 10 558,077          (967)                 

Net cash generated/(used in) from operations 32,722,034     21,350,701       

Investing activities
Increase in deferred income 10 15,287,187 20,014,893       
Transalation gains (9,234,267)      9,561,021         
Increase in held to maturity investment 6 (60,321,753)    (40,150,923)      
Proceeds from sale of equity 7 472,292 683,473            
Investment in equity 7 (135,908)         (2,650,000)       

Net cash used in investing activities (53,932,448)    (12,541,536)      
 

Financing activities
Issue of units 168,154,802   133,764,496     
Redemption of units (135,140,361)  (138,645,282)    

Net cash (used in)/ generted from financing activities 33,014,441     (4,880,786)       

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 11,804,027     3,928,379         

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 5,867,065       1,938,686         

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 17,671,092     5,867,065         

Cash and cash equivalents consists of:
Bank and cash balances 8 17,671,092     5,867,065         

2021 ANNUAL REPORT

AFRICAN BANKING CORPORATION UNIT TRUST FUND       
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS        
for the year ended 31 December 2021
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS         
for the year ended 31 December 2021

1. GENERAL INFORMATION           
ABC Unit Trust Fund (the “Unit Trust”) is an open ended collective investment vehicle established by a Trust 
Deed, to act as a formal vehicle for investors to have their monies pooled together and have professional fund 
managers invest in securities on their behalf. The address of the Fund Managers, registered office and principal 
place of business are disclosed in the corporate information page.

2. SUMMARY OF NEW AND REVISED ACCOUNTING POLICIES RELEVANT TO THE FUND 

2.1 New and amended standards and interpretations        
The Fund applied the following standards and amendments for the first time for their annual reporting period 
commencing 1 January 2021;

● Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16: Interest Rate Benchmark Reform – Phase 2

Several other amendments and interpretations apply for the first time in 2021, but do not have an impact on the 
financial statements of the Fund. The Fund has not early adopted any standards, interpretations or amendments 
that have been issued but are not yet effective.

2.1.1 Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16: Interest Rate Benchmark Reform – Phase 2
The Fund applied the Phase 2 amendments retrospectively. However, in accordance with the exceptions permitted 
in the Phase 2 amendments, the Fund has elected not to restate comparatives for the prior periods to reflect 
the application of these amendments. Since the Fund had no transactions for which the benchmark rate had 
been replaced with an alternative benchmark rate as at 31 December 2020, there is no impact on opening equity 
balances as a result of retrospective application.

Specific policies applicable from 1 January 2021 for interest rate benchmark reform:

In the prior year, the Fund adopted the Phase 1 amendments Interest Rate Benchmark Reform—Amendments to 
IFRS 9/IAS 39 and IFRS 7. These amendments modify specific hedge accounting requirements to allow hedge 
accounting to continue for affected hedges during the period of uncertainty before the hedged items or hedging 
instruments are amended as a result of the interest rate benchmark reform.

In the current year, the Fund adopted the Phase 2 amendments Interest Rate Benchmark Reform—Amendments 
to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16. Adopting these amendments enables the Fund to reflect the effects 
of transitioning from interbank offered rates (IBOR) to alternative benchmark interest rates (also referred to as ‘risk 
free rates’ or RFRs) without giving rise to accounting impacts that would not provide useful information to users 
of financial statements. The Fund has not restated the prior period. Instead, the amendments have been applied 
retrospectively with any adjustments recognised in the appropriate components of equity as at 1 January 2021.

Both the Phase 1 and Phase 2 amendments are relevant to the Fund because it applies hedge accounting to its 
interest rate benchmark exposures, and in the current period modifications in response to the reform have been 
made to some (but not all) of the Fund’s derivative and non-derivative financial instruments that mature post 
2021 (the date by which the reform is expected to be implemented).

The Fund will continue to apply the Phase 1 amendments to IFRS 9/IAS 39 until the uncertainty arising from the 
interest rate benchmark reform with respect to the timing and the amount of the underlying cash flows to which 
the Fund is exposed ends. The Fund expects this uncertainty will continue until the Fund’s contracts that reference 
IBORs are amended to specify the date on which the interest rate benchmark will be replaced and the basis for 
the cash flows of the alternative benchmark rate are determined including any fixed spread.
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Title of IFRS Brief overview of the changes Effective date

IAS 1 Presentation of 
Financial Statements 
(Classification of Liabilities 
as Current or Noncurrent)

The amendments to IAS 1 affect only the presentation of liabilities 
as current or non-current in the statement of financial position 
and not the amount or timing of recognition of any asset, liability, 
income or expenses, or the information disclosed about those 
items. 

1 January 2023

Amendments to IAS 37 – 
Onerous Contracts—Cost 
of Fulfilling a Contract

IAS 8: Accounting Poli-
cies, Changes in Account-
ing Estimates and Errors 
(Definition of Accounting 
Estimates)

The amendments clarify that the classification of liabilities as 
current or non-current is based on rights that are in existence 
at the end of the reporting period, specify that classification is 
unaffected by expectations about whether an entity will exercise 
its right to defer settlement of a liability, explain that rights are 
in existence if covenants are complied with at the end of 
thereporting period, and introduce a definition of ‘settlement’ to 
make clear that settlement refers to the transfer to the counterparty 
of cash, equity instruments, other assets or services.

The amendments specify that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract 
comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the contract’. Costs 
that relate directly to a contract consist of both the incremental 
costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labour 
or materials) and an allocation of other costs that relate directly to 
fulfilling contracts (an example would be the allocation of the 
depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment 
used in fulfilling the contract).

The amendments apply to contracts for which the entity has 
not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the annual 
reporting period in which the entity first applies the amendments. 
Comparatives are not restated. Instead, the entity shall recognise 
the cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments as 
an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings or 
other component of equity, as appropriate, at the date of initial 
application.

The amendments replace the definition of a change in accounting 
estimates with a definition of accounting estimates. Under the 
new definition, accounting estimates are “monetary amounts in 
financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty”.

The definition of a change in accounting estimates was deleted. 
However, the Board retained the concept of changes in accounting 
estimates in the Standard with the following clarifications:

1 January 2022

1 January 2022

2021 ANNUAL REPORT

AFRICAN BANKING CORPORATION UNIT TRUST         
FUND NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)       
for the year ended 31 December 2021

2. SUMMARY OF NEW AND REVISED ACCOUNTING POLICIES RELEVANT TO THE FUND (continued)

2.1 New and amended standards and interpretations (continued)

2.2 New and revised IFRSs in issue that are not yet effective       
At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the Fund has not applied the following new and revised 
IFRS Standards that have been issued but are not yet effective:
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Title of IFRS Brief overview of the changes Effective date

IAS 8: Accounting Policies, 
Changes in Accounting 
Estimates and Errors 
(Definition of Accounting 
Estimates)

The amendments replace the definition of a change in accounting 
estimates with a definition of accounting estimates. Under the 
new definition, accounting estimates are “monetary amounts in 
financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty”.

1 January 2022

Annual Improvements 
to IFRS Standards 
2018- 2020 (Amendments 
to IFRS 9 Financial 
Instruments and IFRS 16 
Leases)

The definition of a change in accounting estimates was deleted. 
However, the Board retained the concept of changes in accounting 
estimates in the Standard with the following clarifications:

●  A change in accounting estimate that results from new 
    information or new developments is not the correction of an 
    error.
●  The effects of a change in an input or a measurement technique
    used to develop an accounting estimate are changes in 
    accounting estimates if they do not result from the correction of 
    prior period errors.
The Board added two examples (Examples 4-5) to the Guidance 
on implementing IAS 8, which accompanies the Standard. The 
Board has deleted one example (Example 3) as it could cause 
confusion in light of the amendments.
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning 
on or after 1 January 2023 to changes in accounting policies 
and changes in accounting estimates that occur on or after 
the beginning of that period, with earlier application permitted.
The Annual Improvements include amendments to four Standards:

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
The amendment clarifies that in applying the ‘10 per cent’ test 
to assess whether to derecognise a financial liability, an entity 
includes only fees paid or received between the entity (the 
borrower) and the lender, including fees paid or received by 
either the entity or the lender on the other’s behalf.
The amendment is applied prospectively to modifications and 
exchanges that occur on or after the date the entity first applies 
the amendment.
IFRS 16 Leases
The amendment removes the illustration of the reimbursement 
of leasehold improvements.
As the amendment to IFRS 16 only regards an illustrative 
example, no effective date is stated.

1 January 2022

AFRICAN BANKING CORPORATION UNIT TRUST FUND        
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)        
for the year ended 31 December 2021

2.   SUMMARY OF NEW AND REVISED ACCOUNTING POLICIES RELEVANT TO THE FUND (continued)

2.2 New and revised IFRSs in issue that are not yet effective (continued)

3.1 Basis of financial statements preparation         
The financial statements of the Fund have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRSs) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis. The financial statements are presented 
in Zambian Kwacha (“K”) rounded to the nearest kwacha. The financial statements were approved for issue by 
the Board of Trustees.
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AFRICAN BANKING CORPORATION UNIT TRUST FUND        
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS         
for the year ended 31 December 2020

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ADOPTED BY THE FUND

3.1 Basis of financial statements preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis which assumes the Fund will continue 
in operational existence for the foreseeable future.

3.2 Revenue recognition           
Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the Fund expects to be entitled in a contract with 
a customer and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The Fund recognises revenue when it 
transfers control of a product or service to a customer.

Interest income            
Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method.The effective interest rate (EIR) is the 
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial 
instrument to:

● the gross carrying amount of the financial asset;         
● or h the amortised cost of the financial liability.

Fees and commission income           
Fees and commission income and expense that are integral to the effective interest rate on a financial asset or 
financial liability are included in the effective interest rate.

Other fees and commission income – including investment management fees, placement fees and syndication 
fees – is recognised as the related services are performed.

Other fees and commission expenses relate mainly to transaction and service fees, which are expensed as the 
services are received.

Dividend income            
Dividend income is recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, upon declaration 
by the share issuer.

In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the 
asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the amortised cost of the liability. However, for financial assets 
that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest income is calculated by applying the 
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If the asset is no longer credit-impaired, then 
the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis.
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AFRICAN BANKING CORPORATION UNIT TRUST FUND        
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)        
for the year ended 31 December 2021

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ADOPTED BY THE FUND (CONTINUED)

3.3 Foreign currencies            
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the respective functional currencies ofFund companies at 
the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency 
at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value 
in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate when the fair value was 
determined. Non- monetary items that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are translated 
at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Foreign currency differences are generally recognised in profit 
or loss and presented within finance costs.

3.31 Provisions             
Provisions are recognised when theFund has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past 
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and the amount can 
be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. Where there are a number of 
similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the 
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any 
one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle 
the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value 
is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the 
liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

3.4 Financial instruments           
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or 
equity instrument of another entity. Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when 
they are originated, all other financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in theFund’s statement of 
financial position when theFund becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument.

a) Financial asset            
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. 
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within 
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

For the purposes of subsequent measurement, the financial assets are classified in four categories:  
● Amortised cost  ̶ debt instruments          
● Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) with recycling of cummulative gains and losses  ̶debt
    instruments

Financial asset (continued)           
● Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)

(i) Amortised cost            
The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is measured at initial recognition 
minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of any 
difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss allowance. The gross carrying 
amount of a financial asset is the amortised cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any loss allowance.
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AFRICAN BANKING CORPORATION UNIT TRUST FUND        
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)        
for the year ended 31 December 2021

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ADOPTED BY THE FUND (continued)

3.4 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial asset (continued)

● Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)

(i) Amortised cost            
The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is measured at initial recognition 
minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of any 
difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss allowance. The gross carrying 
amount of a financial asset is the amortised cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any loss allowance.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated 
as at FVTPL:

● it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and 
● its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest     
   on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest (EIR) method and are 
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified 
or impaired.

TheFund’s financial assets at amortised cost includes trade receivables, loans and advances receivable, loans 
to an associate and loan to a director included under other non-current financial assets.

(ii) Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)       
TheFund measures debt instruments at FVOCI if both of the following conditions are met:

● The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective of both holding to collect contractual         
    cash flows and selling; and           
● The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
    of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

For debt instruments at FVOCI, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and impairment losses or reversals 
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and computed in the same manner as for financial assets measured 
at amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes are recognised in OCI. Upon derecognition, the cumulative 
fair value change recognised in OCI is recycled to profit or loss.

(iii) Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)         
TheFund may make the following irrevocable election at initial recognition of a financial asset:

● present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment in other comprehensive income if it is not     
    held for trading. A financial asset is held for trading if:        
a. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or     
b. on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that theFund manages  
c. it is a derivative (except for a derivative that is a financial guarantee contract or a designated and effective 
    hedging instrument).

● designate a debt investment that meets the amortised cost or FVTOCI criteria as measured at FVTPL if doing    
    so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)        
for the year ended 31 December 2021

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ADOPTED BY THE FUND(continued)

3.4 Financial instruments           
a) Financial asset            
(iii) Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) (Continued)

●  designate a debt investment that meets the amortised cost or FVTOCI criteria as measured at FVTPL if doing        
    so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI (see above) are 
measured at FVTPL. Specifically:

●  Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless theFund designates an equity investment 
     that is neither held for trading nor a contingent consideration arising from a business combination as at FVTOCI 
    on initial recognition.
● Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria (see above) are classified    
    as at FVTPL

b) Derecognition of financial assets          
    A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of aFund of similar financial assets) is    
    primarily derecognised when:

●  The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired.       
●  TheFund has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset and/or has transferred control of
     the asset.

b) Derecognition of financial assets          
On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference between the asset ’s carrying 
amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss. In addition, on 
derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument classified as at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously 
accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss. In contrast, on derecognition 
of an investment in equity instrument which theFund has elected on initial recognition to measure at FVTOCI, 
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is not reclassified to 
profit or loss, but is transferred to retained earnings.

c) Impairment of financial assets          
TheFund recognises a loss allowance for Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) on investments in debt instruments that 
are measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI, lease receivables, trade receivables and contract assets, as well 
as on financial guarantee contracts. The amount of expected credit losses is updated at each reporting date to 
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the respective financial instrument.

TheFund measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for the following, which are 
measured at 12‐month ECLs:           
●  debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and    
●  other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the expected 
    life of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowances for trade receivables and contract assets are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime 
ECLs. Lifetime ECL for trade receivables, contract assets and lease receivables are estimated using a provision 
matrix based on theFund’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, 
general economic conditions and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions 
at the reporting date, including time value of money where appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)        
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ADOPTED BY THE FUND (continued)

3.4 Financial instruments

c) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible default events over the expected 
life of a financial instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to 
result from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and 
when estimating ECLs, theFund considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available 
without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on 
theFund’s historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward‐looking information.

TheFund assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30 days 
past due. TheFund considers a financial asset to be in default when:

● the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to theFund in full, without recourse by theFund to actions 
    such as realising security (if any is held); or

● the financial asset is more than 90 days past due.

TheFund considers a financial asset to have low credit risk when the asset has external credit rating of ‘investment 
grade’ in accordance with the globally understood definition or if an external rating is not available, the asset 
has an internal rating of ‘performing’. Performing means that the counterparty has a strong financial position 
and there is no past due amounts.

Credit impaired financial assets           
At each reporting date, theFund assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and debt securities at 
FVOCI are credit‐impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit‐impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental 
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit‐impaired includes the following observable data:

● Significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

● A breach of contract such as a default or being more than 90 days past due;

● The restructuring of a loan or advance that theFund would not consider otherwise;

● It is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or h The disappearance 
of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

Write off policy             
TheFund writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial 
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under liquidation 
or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when the amounts are over two 
years past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject to enforcement activities 
under theFund’s recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made 
are recognised in profit or loss.
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3.   SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ADOPTED BY THE FUND (continued)

3.4 Financial instruments

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Measurement of Expected Credit Losses         
ECLs are a probability‐weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value of all 
cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance with the contract and 
the cash flows that theFund expects to receive). ECLs are discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial 
asset.

For a lease receivable, the cash flows used for determining the expected credit losses is consistent with the cash 
flows used in measuring the lease receivable in accordance with IFRS 16.

If theFund has measured the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL in 
theprevious reporting period, but determines at the current reporting date that the conditions for lifetime ECL 
are no longer met, theFund measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12‐month ECL at the current 
reporting date, except for assets for which simplified approach was used.

TheFund recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding 
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account, except for investments in debt instruments 
that are measured at FVTOCI, for which the loss allowance is recognised in other comprehensive income and 
accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve, and does not reduce the carrying amount of the financial 
asset in the statement of financial position.

d) Financial liabilities

Intial recognition and measurement          
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, 
loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as 
appropriate. 

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, 
net of directly attributable transaction costs. 

TheFund’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts, 
and derivative financial instruments. 

Subsequent measurement 

The subsequent measurement of the financial liabilities depends on their classification as described below: 

● Fair value through profit or loss 
    Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial              
    liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are 
     classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category 
    also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by theFund that are not designated as hedging 
    instruments in hedge relationships as defined by IFRS 9. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified 
    as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities 
    held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. 
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3.   SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ADOPTED BY THE FUND (continued) 

3.4 Financial instruments 

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the 
initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in IFRS 9 are satisfied. TheFund has not designated any financial 
liability as at fair value through profit or loss. 

● Loans and borrowings           
This is the category most relevant to theFund. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are 
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or 
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) amortisation process. 
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs 
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit 
or loss. 

● Offsetting financial instruments          
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial 
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to do so. 

e) Derecognition of financial liabilities and equity instrument       
TheFund derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, theFund’s obligations are discharged, cancelled 
or they expire.When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially 
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification 
is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the 
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss. 

f) Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting        
TheFund uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts, interest rate swaps and 
forward commodity contracts, to hedge its foreign currency risks, interest rate risks and commodity price risks, 
respectively. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a 
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as 
financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative. 

For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:

● Fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognised asset or liability or 
    an unrecognised firm commitment.

● Cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to variability in cash flows that is either attributable to a 
    particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction or the 
    foreign currency risk in an unrecognised firm commitment. 

● Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation. 

At the inception of a hedge relationship, theFund formally designates and documents the hedge relationship to 
which it wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the 
hedge.Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, theFund documents whether the 
hedging instrument is effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged item attributable to 
the hedged risk, which is when the hedging relationship meets all of the following hedge effectiveness requirements: 
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ADOPTED BY THE FUND (continued) 

f) Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued) 

● There is ‘an economic relationship’ between the hedged item and the hedging instrument.

● The effect of credit risk does not ‘dominate the value changes’ that result from that economic relationship.

● The hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is the same as that resulting from the quantity of the hedged item 

that theFund actually hedges and the quantity of the hedging instrument that theFund actually uses to hedge 
that quantity of hedged item. 

Hedges that meet all the qualifying criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for, as described below: 

● Fair value hedges            
   The change in the fair value of a hedging instrument is recognised in the statement of profit or loss as other    
   expense. 

The change in the fair value of the hedged item attributable to the risk hedged is recorded as part of the carrying 
value of the hedged item and is also recognised in the statement of profit or loss as other expense. 

For fair value hedges relating to items carried at amortised cost, any adjustment to carrying value is amortised 
through profit or loss over the remaining term of the hedge using the EIR method. The EIR amortisation may begin 
as soon as an adjustment exists and no later than when the hedged item ceases to be adjusted for changes in 
its fair value attributable to the risk being hedged. 

If the hedged item is derecognised, the unamortised fair value is recognised immediately in profit or loss. When 
an unrecognised firm commitment is designated as a hedged item, the subsequent cumulative change in the 
fair value of the firm commitment attributable to the hedged risk is recognised as an asset or liability with a 
corresponding gain or loss recognised in profit or loss. 

● Cashflow hedges            
    The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised in OCI in the cash flow hedge 
   reserve, while any ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the statement of profit or loss. The cash 
    flow hedge reserve is adjusted to the lower of the cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument and the 
   cumulative change in fair value of the hedged item. 

   TheFund uses forward currency contracts as hedges of its exposure to foreign currency risk in forecast 
    transactions and firm commitments, as well as forward commodity contracts for its exposure to volatility in the 
    commodity prices. The ineffective portion relating to foreign currency contracts is recognised as other expense 
    and the ineffective portion relating to commodity contracts is recognised in other operating income or expenses. 

Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are reclassified to profit 
or loss in the periods when the hedged item affects profit or loss, in the same line as the recognised hedged item. 
However, when the hedged forecast transaction results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or a non-
financial liability, the gains and losses previously recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in 
equity are removed from equity and included in the initial measurement of the cost of the non-financial asset or 
non-financial liability. This transfer does not affect other comprehensive income. Furthermore, if theFund expects 
that some or all of the loss accumulated in the cash flow hedging reserve will not be recovered in the future, that 
amount is immediately reclassified to profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ADOPTED BY THE FUND (continued) 

f) Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)      
TheFund discontinues hedge accounting only when the hedging relationship (or a part thereof) ceases to meet the 
qualifying criteria (after rebalancing, if applicable). This includes instances when the hedging instrument expires 
or is sold, terminated or exercised. 

4. KEY ACCOUTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS       
The preparation of theFund’s financial statements requires the Directors to make judgements, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts and the accompanying disclosures. Uncertainty about these 
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount 
of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. 

The preparation of theFund’s financial statements requires the Directors to make judgements, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts and the accompanying disclosures. Uncertainty about these 
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount 
of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. 

4.1 Key accounting estimates 

a). Estimates of asset lives, residual values and depreciation methods      
TheFund reviewed the residual values, useful lives and carrying amount of its equipment and other moveable 
assets to determine the appropriate level of depreciation and whether there is any indication that those assets 
have suffered an impairment loss. TheFund judged a residual value of zero as a result of the fact that equipment 
and other moveable assets are not held for trading and are normally scrapped. 

c). Calculation of expected credit loss allowance         
When measuring ECL theFund uses reasonable and supportable forward looking information, which is based on 
assumptions for the future movement of different economic drivers and how these drivers will affect each other. 

Loss given default is an estimate of the loss arising on default. It is based on the difference between the contractual 
cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to receive, taking into account cash flows from collateral 
and integral credit enhancements. 

TheFund uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables. The provision rates are based on days 
past due forFundings of various customer segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by geography, product 
type, customer type and rating, and coverage by letters of credit and other forms of credit insurance). 

The provision matrix is initially based on theFund’s historical observed default rates. TheFund will calibrate the 
matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information. For instance, if forecast 
economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic product) are expected to deteriorate over the next year which can 
lead to an increased number of defaults in the manufacturing sector, the historical default rates are adjusted. 
At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking 
estimates are analysed. 

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and 
ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of forecast 
economic conditions. TheFund’s historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions may also 
not be representative of customer’s actual default in the future.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ADOPTED BY THE FUND (continued) 

4. KEY ACCOUTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS 

Measurement of fair values            
To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, theFund has classified 
its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standards, as explained below: 

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives, and 
trading and available-for-sale securities) is based on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period. 

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the- 
counter derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data 
and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument 
are observable, the instrument is included in level 2. 

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included 
in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities.

b). Judgements in determining the amount of revenue to be recognised     
Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer. TheFund recognises 
revenue when it transfers control over a good or service to a customer. 

The entity assesses the nature and timing of the satisfaction of a performance obligations in contracts with 
customers, including significant payment terms, and the related revenue recognition policies as agreed in the 
contract with the customer. 

Variable consideration relating to volume rebates has been constrained in estimating contract revenue in order 
that it is highly probable that there will not be a future reversal in the amount of revenue recognised when the 
amount of volume rebates has been determined. 

c). Significant increase in credit risk           
As explained in note 3.13 (c), ECL are measured as an allowance equal to 12‐month ECL for stage 1 assets, or 
lifetime ECL for stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An asset moves to stage 2 when its credit risk has increased significantly 
since initial recognition. IFRS 9 does not define what constitutes a significant increase in credit risk. In assessing 
whether 

the credit risk of an asset has significantly increased theFund takes into account qualitative and quantitative 
reasonable and supportable forward looking information. 
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2021 2020
ZMW ZMW

5. Interest income

GRZ securities 16,214,268 7,273,073      
Fixed deposits 13,054,477 17,475,795    
Discount earned on government bonds 10,516,971 920,923
Corporate bonds 2,773,808 2,883,085      
Commercial paper 1,185,689 -                
Bank interest -                   27,049           

43,745,212 28,579,925
5 (i) Other income

Loss on equity valuation 102,492 - 
Divdend received 67,885 77,161 
Other income 6,384 786,957 

43,921,973 29,444,043

6. Held to maturity investments 

Government securities 122,148,734   72,964,421    
Fixed term deposits 79,416,081 85,386,345
Commercial paper 32,260,466 -                   
Corporate bond -                      13,775,726    

233,825,281 172,126,492
(4,004,704) (2,627,668)    

229,820,577 169,498,824

7. Investment in equity securities 
Opening balance 5,387,212 4,348,770

145,247  
Disposals (472,292) (683,473) 

(9,339) -                   
Gains arising from changes in  fair value of shares 102,492 (928,085)       

5,153,320 5,387,212

Allowance for credit losses

Additions during the year 

The investment in equity comprise the following investments in listed entities on the Lusaka Securities Exchange:

Commission on equity transactions

2,650,000

2021 ANNUAL REPORT

AFRICAN BANKING CORPORATION UNIT TRUST FUND        
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS         
for the year ended 31 December 2021
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UNIT TRUST

Opening
shares

price

Market
value

shares
Closing
shares

Closing
share
price

Opening
market value

Closing
Market Value

Value
Bata Shoe Company 2.6 1,097,250   1,094,350 3 2,852,850 2,834,367
Copperbelt Energy 1.1 52,470 65,970 3 57,717 174,821

-           - 4,064        1 - 4,917
First Quantum 3.7 69,554 34,777 4 257,350 132,153
Standard Chartered Bank 1.4 633,767 318,284 1 887,274 381,941
Shoprite Holdings PLC 63 3,000 3,000 64 189,000 192,000
Zambian Breweries PLC 7.23 93,067 92,267 7 672,874 622,802
Metal Fabricators 4.78 10,636 10,636 5 50,840 50,840
Zambia National Commercial Bank 0.47 123,535 86,475 2 58,061 164,303
Zambeef 1.1 178,571 178,571 2 196,428 287,499

2.88 47,925 47,500 2 138,024 117,325
Real Estates Investments 0.39 68,700 68,700 1 26,793 85,875
Pamodzi - -             57,400      1 - 34,440
African Minning Explosives PLC - -             1,189        29 - 34,933
Zambia Reinsurance - -             12,359 3 - 34,482
Zambia Sugar - -             43            15 - 624

2,378,475 2,075,585 141 5,387,212 5,153,320

8. Cash and bank 
Stanbic Bank 12,108,375 73,587
Atlasmara Bank plc 5,344,539 5,662,406
ABSA Bank plc 218,178 131,073

17,671,092 5,867,065

9. Trade & other receivable
Sundry receivables 1,132,109 1,388,473

1,132,109 1,388,473

10. Trade & other payables 
Deferred income 35,314,790 20,027,603
Provision for Management fees 1,539,951 1,178,491
Other liabilities 142,624 66,357
Provision for Audit fees 132,000 60,311
Provision for Trustee fees 92,840 62,544
Provision for CIS 77,366 52,120
Provision for custodian fees 24,414 31,295

37,323,985 21,478,721

Puma Energy

Madison

Accounts payables principally comprise of amounts outstanding in respect of Trustee, Management, Audit fees
as well as amounts accrued in respect of operating costs.

AFRICAN BANKING CORPORATION UNIT TRUST FUND        
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS         
for the year ended 31 December 2021
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Going Concern            
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which assumes the continuity of normal 
business activity and the realisation of assets and the settlement of liabilities in the normal course of business.

On the basis of cash flow information prepared by the Fund Managers and after consultation with the Trustees, 
the Fund Managers consider that ABC Unit Trust will continue to operate for the foreseeable future within the 
available financial resources. Accordingly, the Fund Managers are of the opinion that the preparation of these 
financial statements on the going concern basis is appropriate.

12. Financial instruments management

Financial risk management           
Each fund operated by the Unit Trust is exposed to a mix of financial risks resulting predominantly from the 
instruments in which they invest into.

Financial risk is limited firstly by the regulatory environment. The Securities Act of Zambia has strict and specific 
regulations as to what instruments may and may not be held by the unit trust funds.

Each Unit Trust is also governed by a Trust Deed, which commits it to a specific investment objective. The Trust 
Deed’s investment objective is further refined into an investment policy which requires the fund manager to 
manage the Unit Trust in accordance with the specified policy. As far as possible, compliance limits are built into 
the daily pricing systems and processes of the fund managers and are checked and reported on at least annually.

The Securities Exchange Commission (SEC) gives initial approval for each Unit Trust and reviews compliance 
of the Management of the Unity Trust at least annually. Daily checks are performed by the independent trustee/
custodian as well as the compliance functions of the Fund Managers (if any), further, each appointed fund 
manager ensures compliance with investment policies and limitations specified in the respective Trust Deeds 
and the regulations determined under the Securities Act.

The nature of a Fund is determined by the Fund’s objective and investment policy, both of which dictate the 
nature of the underlying investments the fund holds and its risk profile.

The nature of the unit portfolios are determined by the trust deed. Unit portfolios are firstly classified in terms of 
an individual investor risk profile and investment objective as well as the size of their investment.
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12. Financial instruments management (continued) 

The Unit Trust  holds the following financial instruments: 

Financial assets Notes Assets at FVTOCI 

 
Derivatives

used for
hedging

 Financial 
assets at 

amortised cost Total
2021 ZMW ZMW ZMW ZMW ZMW

10 -                 -                   - 229,820,577   229,820,577
7 -                 5,153,320    - -                     5,153,320
6 -                 -                   - 1,132,109      1,132,109
5 -                 17,671,092 - -                     17,671,092

-                 22,824,412  -                229,820,577   253,777,097   

Financial assets Notes Derivatives
used for
hedging

 Financial 
assets at 

amortised cost 

Total 

2020 ZMW ZMW ZMW ZMW ZMW
10 -                 -                   -                169,498,824     169,498,824
7 -                 5,387,212      -                -                     5,387,212
6 -                 1,388,473      -                - 1,388,473
5 -                 5,867,065      -                - 5,867,065

-                 12,642,750    -                169,498,824     182,141,574     

 
Derivatives

used for
hedging  

 Financial
liabilities at

amortised
cost Total

ZMW ZMW ZMW K
2021

-               -            37,323,985     37,323,985     

-               -             37,323,985     37,323,985     
2020

-               -            21,478,721      21,478,721       

-               -             21,478,721      21,478,721       

Derivatives at
fair value

Accounts payable 10

Accounts payable 10

Financial assets at fair 
value through profit/ 
Cash and cash 
equivalents 

Financial liabilities Notes 

Held to maturity 

Assets at 
FVTPL

Held to maturity 
Financial assets at fair 
Receivables
Cash and cash 
equivalents 

Assets at 
FVTOCI 

Assets at 
FVTPL

AFRICAN BANKING CORPORATION UNIT TRUST FUND        
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)       
for the year ended 31 December 2021

12. Financial instruments management (continued)        
      The Unit Trust holds the following financial instruments:
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Fair value hierarchy Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets 
ZMW ZMW ZMW ZMW

-                   - 229,820,577 229,820,577
5,387,212    - -                     5,387,212

5,387,212    - 229,820,577   235,207,788   

Financial liabilities 

Accounts payable 

-                   -                37,323,985           37,323,985 
-                   -                37,323,985     37,323,985     

Fair value hierarchy Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets 
ZMW ZMW ZMW ZMW

-                   - 169,498,824 169,498,824
4,348,770      -                -                     4,348,770

4,348,770      -                169,498,824     173,847,594     

Financial liabilities 

Accounts payable

-                   -                21,478,721             21,478,721 

-                   -                21,478,721      21,478,721       

Financial assets at fair 

Held to maturity 

as at 31 December 2021

Held to maturity 

as at 31 December 2020

Financial assets at fair 

2021 ANNUAL REPORT
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12. Financial instruments management (continued)

Financial risk management (continued)

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments 
that are recognised and measured at fair value in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the 
reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Unit Trust has classified its financial instruments into 
the three levels prescribed under the accounting standards, as explained below:

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives, and 
trading and available-for-sale securities) is based on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the- 
counter derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques which maximize the use of observable market data 
and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument 
are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included 
in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities.
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Risk Risk arising from Measurement Management

Foreign currency 
exchange rate risk

Interest rate risk

Liquidity risk

Credit risk

Future commercial transactions, 
recognized financial assets and 
liabilities denominated in foreign 
currency.

Long term borrowings at 
variable rates

Borrowings and other liabilities

Cash and cash equivalents, 
trade receivables, available- for-
sale debt instruments and held- 
to-maturity investments

Cash flow forecasting
& sensitivity analysis

Sensitivity analysis

Rolling cashflow
forecasts

Aging analysis 
Credit ratings

Monitoring of the exchange 
rates and making payments 
during periods of a favourable 
exchange rate.

None at the moment

Availability of committed 
credit lines and borrowing 
facilities

Diversification of bank 
deposits, credit limits for 
customers and credit 
worthiness checks.

AFRICAN BANKING CORPORATION UNIT TRUST FUND        
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)       
for the year ended 31 December 202112. 

12. Financial instruments management (continued)        
This note explains the Unit Trust ’s exposure to financial risks and how these risks could affect the Unit Trusts’ 
future financial performance. Below are the risks the Unit Trust is exposed to:

The Unit Trust ’s risk management is carried out by the Fund Managers under policies approved by the Unit Trust. 
The Fund Manager identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks in close co-operation with the Unit Trust ’s 
operating units. The Fund Manager provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as policies 
covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative financial 
instruments and non-derivative financial instruments, and investment of excess liquidity.

13. Contingent liabilities           
There are no other known material contingent liabilities at 31 December 2021 (2020:Nill).

14. Capital Commitments           
There were no capital commitments as at 31 December 2021 (2020:Nill).

15. Events after the reporting date          
There has been no events subsequent to the reporting date that may require disclosure in or adjustment to the 
financial statements.
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15. Financial instruments management (continued)

Retail investor

● ABC Money Market Fund: This fund aims at investing in short term money instruments. This fund mainly    
   invests in cash, Deposits and other money market instruments in order to deliver regular income to investors 
    within the fund. Where liquidity allows the fund manager may allocate some of the funds towards fixed income 
   securities in order to smoothen short term yield curve.

   By investing in this fund, investors stand to benefit from competitive market returns on a portfolio of security 
   placements invested in selected fixed deposits and Treasury bills. Hence, the fund allows investors have easy 
   access to their funds over their investment period whilst enjoying higher rates of return.

● ABC Equity Fund: Investments are made primarily in shares and other equity instruments. The fund aims to 
   earn a higher rate of return than the average of the Zambian equity market without higher risk of loss.

    The fund has a portfolio of carefully selected stocks on the Lusaka Stock Exchange. By investing in this fund,   
   investors stand to benefit from capital gains as well as from the dividend’s payments from the entities that 
   ABC Unit Trust would have invested in.

● ABC Balanced Fund: The Balanced fund aims at achieving a high level of fixed and periodic income over a 
   longer period by investing in fixed income securities such as GRZ Bonds, Treasury bills, Corporate Bond and 
    Money Market placements such as fixed term bank deposits. The fund aims at giving investors regular Income 
   over their investment period.

   Institutional investors and high net worth clients        
● ABC US Dollar funds: The primary performance goal for the ABC US Dollar fund is to provide the investor          
   with consistent foreign income which is higher than deposits in United States Dollar trading banks. The fund 
   invests mainly in US dollar-denominated interest-bearing securities.

    ABC US Dollar High Yield funds: The primary performance objective of this portfolio is to mirror the 364 Libor 
    Rate +250 basis points. The fund invests primarily in long term USD Denominated placements with a minimum 
   maturity of 364 days. It allows only one redemption every after 12 months.

● ABC Gratuity funds: The primary performance objective of the portfolio is to draw a balance between achieving 
   a high level of correct income as is consistent with capital preservations and liquidity as well as long term 
   fixed income investments. The fund mainly aims to achieve the primary performance objective by investing in 
    both shorter and longer dated fixed income and money market instruments. The fund invests principally in cash, 
   Treasury Bills, Government Bonds, Corporate bonds as well as 364 deposits and money-market instruments.

● ABC ZMW High Yield funds: The primary performance objective of this portfolio is to mirror the 365 days T-Bill 
   or the long-term bond yield curve by locking funds in long term buckets whilst limiting redemption to only 
   once every year after 12 months.

   The fund aims at attracting high value investors with minimum investments amount of K500,000. The fund 
   will aim to hold 0% of cash holding.

   The Funds are exposed to financial risk through their financial assets and financial liabilities. In particular the 
   key financial risk is that the proceeds from financial assets are not sufficient to fund the obligations arising      
   from the redemption of units. The most significant components of financial risk are interest rate risk, liquidity  
   risk, market risk and currency risk.
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2021 2020
ZMW ZMW

INCOME
Interest earned  on GRZ securities 16,214,268 7,273,073
Interest on fixed deposits 13,054,477 17,475,795       
Discount earned on government bonds 10,516,971 920,923           
Interest on corporate bonds 2,773,808 2,883,085        
Interest on commercial paper 1,185,689 -                     
Bank interest -                        27,049             

43,745,212 28,579,925
OTHER INCOME
Loss on equity revaluation 102,492 -                     
Dividend earned equities 67,885 77,161             
Other Income 6,384 786,957           

43,921,973 29,444,043       

OPERATING EXPENSES
Management fees 6,178,180 3,874,203        
Trustee fees 336,641 257,047           
Custody fees 347,837 219,748           

6,862,658 4,350,998        

ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES
Credit losses 1,668,285         674,170           
Withholding Tax 2,676,767         2,204,036        
CIS Levy 280,535            182,252           
Audit Fees 134,386            120,000           
AGM Expenses 110,850            63,853             
Transaction expenses 146,190            35,504             
Bank Charges 20,795              11,680             
Commission equity transactions 9,339                -                     
Redemption Charges 2,083                8,591               

5,049,231         3,300,086        

Foreign exchange revaluations 9,234,267 9,561,021       

Total expenditure 21,146,156       7,651,084       

Total comprehensive income for the year 22,775,818       31,353,980

AFRICAN BANKING CORPORATION UNIT TRUST FUND       
APPENDIX I - DETAILED SCHEDULE OF EXPENSES        
for the year ended 31 December 2021
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NOTES 2021 2020
ZMW ZMW

Income 
Interest from held to maturity investments Sch 1 3,589,263 2,866,088     
Other income Sch 1 107,225 -                   

3,696,488 2,866,088     
Operating expenses
Management fees Sch 1 (935,243) (915,160)       
Administrative expenses Sch 1 (250,227) (378,590)       
Custodian fees Sch 1 (25,633)          (21,516)         
Trustee fees Sch 1 (25,413)          (19,315)         

Total operating expenses (1,236,516)     (1,334,581)    

Profit for the year 2,459,971   1,531,507  

Other comprehensive income - -

Total comprehensive income for the year 2,459,971 1,531,507

2021 ANNUAL REPORT

AFRICAN BANKING CORPORATION MONEY MARKET FUND     Appendice 1 
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME     
for the year ended 31 December 2021
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2021 2020
NOTES ZMW ZMW

ASSETS
Held to maturity investments 15 18,312,742 14,945,751
Bank and cash balances 16 1,346,226 745,110
Interfund accounts receivable 17 841,174          519,276

Total Assets 20,500,142 16,210,138

UNIT HOLDERS FUNDS AND LIABILITIES 

Unit holders fund 
Income fund unit holders investment 17,399,292     12,454,849    

Liabilities

Deferred income -                  2,727,690
Accounts payable 18 3,100,850       1,027,599

3,100,850       3,755,289      

Total unit holders funds and liabilities 20,500,142 16,210,138

AFRICAN BANKING CORPORATION MONEY MARKET FUND      
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION         
as at 31 December 2021
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Units Retained
value earnings Total
ZMW ZMW ZMW

Balance at 31 December 2019 16,490,774     4,764,007      21,254,781    

Issue of units during the year 26,990,202 - 19,286,577     - - - 19,286,577    
Redemption of units during the year (35,284,231) - (29,618,016)    - - - (29,618,016)   
Profit for the year -- -- 1,531,507      - 1,531,507      

Balance at 31 December 2020         6,159,334       6,295,514     12,454,849 
Issue of units during the year - 18,983,175 -                     18,983,175      
Redemption of units during the year - (16,498,703)      -                     (16,498,703)     
Profit for the year - -                      2,459,971      2,459,971        

Balance at 31 December 2021 9,611,201 8,643,806       8,755,486      17,399,292    

Number of units

2021 ANNUAL REPORT

AFRICAN BANKING CORPORATION MONEY MARKET FUND      
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN UNIT HOLDERS FUNDS       
for the year ended 31 December 2021
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NOTES 2021 2020
Operating activities ZMW ZMW
Profit for the year 2,459,971 1,531,507        

Operating cashflows before movement in working capital 2,459,971       1,531,507        

Movements in working capital:
Increase in accounts payables 18 2,073,251       53,841            
Decrease in account receivables 17 -                      593                 
Decrease in interfund accounts payable -                      (200,427)         
(Increase) in interfund receivables (321,898)         (256,712)         

Net cash  generated from operations 4,211,324       1,128,802        

Investing activities
(Decrease)/Increase in deferred income 18 (2,727,690)      2,727,690        
(Increase)/Decrease in Held to Maturity investments 15 (3,366,991)      6,922,761        

Net cash generted from investing activities (6,094,681)      9,650,451        
 

Financing activities
Issue of units 18,983,175 19,286,577      
Redemption of units (16,498,703)    (29,618,016)     

Net cash (used in)/ generted  from financing activities 2,484,472       (10,331,439)     

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 601,116 447,814          

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 745,110          297,296          

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 1,346,226       745,110          

Cash and cash equivalents consists of:
Bank and cash balances 16 1,346,226       745,110          

AFRICAN BANKING CORPORATION MONEY MARKET FUND       
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS          
for the year ended 31 December 2021
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2021 2020
ZMW ZMW

15. Held to Maturity Investments 
Fixed term deposits 10,129,305  4,506,102      
Government securities 8,306,524    10,030,649    
Commercial papers 102,458       -                   
Corporate bonds -                   741,770         

18,538,286 15,278,521
(225,544)      (332,769)        

18,312,742 14,945,752

16. Cash and bank 
Stanbic Bank 737,218 3,917            
Atlasmara Bank plc 390,830 610,120         
ABSA Bank plc 218,178 131,073         

1,346,226 745,110

17. Trade & other receivable
Sundry receivables 841,174 519,276         

18. Trade & other payables 
Deferred income 2,026,856 2,727,690      
Provision for Management fees 1,041,407 998,088         
Provision for Audit fees 10,227 5,336            
Other liabilities 8,114 10,981           
Provision for Trustee fees 6,721 5,727            
Provision for CIS 5,601 4,773            
Provision for custodian fees 1,923 2,693            

3,100,850 3,755,288

Allowance for credit losses

2021 ANNUAL REPORT

AFRICAN BANKING CORPORATION MONEY MARKET FUND       
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS         
for the year ended 31 December 2021
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ABC ASSET MANAGEMENT

2021 2020
ZMW ZMW

INCOME
Interest on fixed deposits 1,288,839 1,805,009     
Interest earned  on GRZ securities 1,269,857 741,479        
Discount earned on government bonds 878,750 159,904        
Interest on corporate bonds 149,359 154,844        
Commercial paper 2,458 4,852           

3,589,263 2,866,088     
OTHER INCOME
Other income 107,225 -                  

3,696,488 2,866,088     

OPERATING EXPENSES
Management fees 935,243 915,160        
Trustee fees 25,413 19,315          
Custody fees 25,633 21,516          

986,289 955,991        

ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES
Withholding Tax 203,177       259,122        
CIS Levy 21,178         16,096          
Audit Fees 10,227         10,536          
AGM Expenses 8,114           5,619           
Transaction expenses 2,779           12,106          
Bank Charges 2,669           4,213           
Redemption Charges 2,083           1,427           
Credit loss -                   69,471          

250,227       378,590        

Foreign exchange revaluations -               -              

Total expenditure 1,236,516    1,334,581   

Profit for the year 2,459,971    1,531,507

AFRICAN BANKING CORPORATION MONEY MARKET FUND             SCHEDULE 1  
DETAILED SCHEDULE OF INCOME & EXPENSES        
for the year ended 31 December 2021
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NOTES 2021 2020
Income ZMW ZMW
Gain/Loss from changes in fair value of shares Sch 2 -                 (928,085)      
Income on held to maturity investments Sch 2 123,129     61,107
Dividends received Sch 2 67,885 77,161
Other income Sch 2 9,264         267              

Total income 200,278     (789,550)      

Operating expenses
Management fees Sch 2 (198,737)    (219,707)      
Administrative expenses Sch 2 (23,452)      (27,417)        
Trustee fees Sch 2 (8,648)        (8,562)          
Custodian fees Sch 2 (8,206)        (10,014)        

Total operating expenses (239,045)    (265,700)      

Loss for the year (38,767)      (1,055,250)   

Other comprehensive income - -

Total comprehensive (loss) for the year (38,767)      (1,055,250)  

2021 ANNUAL REPORT

AFRICAN BANKING CORPORATION EQUITY FUND       Appendice 2  
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME     
for the year ended 31 December 2021
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ABC ASSET MANAGEMENT

NOTES 2021 2020
ZMW ZMW

ASSETS
Equity investments 20 5,153,320    5,387,212   
Accounts receivables 22 108,382       99,253       
Held to maturity investments 19 287,250       68,782       
Bank and cash balances 21 33,857         21,736       

Total Assets 5,582,809    5,576,983   

UNIT HOLDERS FUNDS AND LIABILITIES 

Unit holders fund 
Equity fund unit holders investment 4,225,452    4,362,525   

Liabilities
Interfund accounts payable 23 1,320,425    1,167,043   
Deferred income 23 - 23,231       
Accounts payable 23 36,932 24,184       

1,357,357    1,214,458   

Total unit holders funds and liabilities 5,582,809    5,576,983   

AFRICAN BANKING CORPORATION EQUITY FUND         
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION         
as at 31 December 2021
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Number of Units Retained 
Units value earnings Total

ZMW ZMW ZMW

Balance at 31 December 2019     3,615,568     5,492,366       (157,778)       5,334,588
Issue of units during the year -                  2,682,161   -                   2,682,161      
Redemption of units during the year -                  (2,598,974)  -                   (2,598,974)     
Loss for the year -                  -                  (1,055,250)   (1,055,250)     

Balance at 31 December 2020     3,615,568     5,575,554    (1,213,028)       4,362,525
Issue of units during the year 116,863        20,118          -                   20,118            
Redemption of units during the year (254,621)       (118,424)       -                   (118,424)         
Loss for the year -                  -                  (38,767)        (38,767)           

Balance as at 31 December 2021 3,477,810   5,477,248   (1,251,795)   4,225,452      

2021 ANNUAL REPORT

AFRICAN BANKING CORPORATION EQUITY FUND        
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN UNIT HOLDERS FUNDS        
for the year ended 31 December 2021
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ABC ASSET MANAGEMENT

NOTES 2021 2020
ZMW ZMW

Cash flows from operating activities
(Loss) for the year (38,767)         (1,055,250)    
Items not involving movement of funds:
Gains from changes in value of the held to maturity investments -                    (267)             

Operating cashflows before movement in working capital (38,767)         (1,055,517)    

Movements in working capital 
(Increase)/Decrease in  accounts receivable 22 (9,129)           9,696            
Increase in inter-fund accounts payables 23 153,382 860,891        
Decrease in deferred income 23 (23,231)         -                   
Increase/(Decrease) in interfund accounts payable 23 12,748          (18,725)         

Net cash generated from  operations 95,003          (203,655)       

Investing activities
(Decrease)/Increase in held to maturity investments 19 (218,468)       1,142,807     
Proceeds from the sale of equity -                    683,473        
Increase in deferred income 23 -                    23,231          
Investment in equity 20 233,892        (2,650,000)    

Net cash generated from investing activities 15,424          (800,489)       

Financing activities
Issue of units 20,118 2,682,161     
Redemption of units (118,424)       (2,598,974)    

Net cash used in financing activities (98,306)         83,187          

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 12,121          7,395            

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 21,736          14,341          

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 33,857          21,736          

Cash and cash equivalents consists of:
Bank and cash balances 21 33,857          21,736          

AFRICAN BANKING CORPORATION EQUITY FUND        
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS          
for the year ended 31 December 2021
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2021 2020
ZMW ZMW

19. Held to Maturity Investments 
Commercial papers 209,182     -                
Government securities 81,729       81,707       
Accrued interest -                 

290,911 81,707
(3,661)        (12,925)      

287,250 68,782

20. Investment in Equity securities 
Opening balance 5,387,212  4,348,770   

145,247     2,650,000   
Disposals (472,292)    (683,473)     

(9,339)        -                
Gains/losses arising from changes in  fair value of shares 102,492     (928,085)     

5,153,320 5,387,212

Opening 
UNIT TRUST Market value

Closing 
share price

Bata Shoe Company 2.6 1,097,250    1,094,350 3               2,852,850 2,834,367
Copperbelt Energy 1.1 52,470        65,970 3               57,717 174,821

-          -              4,064         1               -              4,917
First Quantum 3.7 69,554        34,777 4               257,350 132,153
Standard Chartered Bank 1.4 633,767 318,284 1               887,274 381,941
Shoprite Holdings PLC 63 3,000          3,000 64              189,000 192,000
Zambian Breweries PLC 7.23 93,067        92,267 7               672,874 622,802
Metal Fabricators 4.78 10,636        10,636 5               50,840 50,840
ZANACO 0.47 123,535       86,475 2               58,061 164,303
Zambeef 1.1 178,571       178,571 2               196,428 287,499

2.88 47,925        47,500 2               138,024 117,325
Real Estates Investments 0.39 68,700        68,700 1               26,793 85,875
Pamodzi -          -              57,400       1               -              34,440
African Minning Explosives -          -              1,189         29              -              34,933
Zambia Reinsurance -          -              12,359       3               -              34,482
Zambia Sugar -          -              43              15              -              624

2,378,475 2,075,585 141            5,387,212 5,153,320

Allowance for credit losses

Additions during the year 

Commission on equity transactions

The investment inequity comprise the following on the Lusaka Securities Exchange:

Puma Energy

Madison

Opening
shares

price

Opening 
market 

value

Closing 
Market 

Value Value
Opening 

share

2021 ANNUAL REPORT

AFRICAN BANKING CORPORATION EQUITY FUND         
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS         
for the year ended 31 December 2021
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ABC ASSET MANAGEMENT

2021 2020
ZMW ZMW

21. Cash and bank 
Stanbic Bank Zambia 32,667 1,995         
Atlasmara Bank PLC 1,190 19,742       

33,857 21,737

22. Trade & other receivable
Sundry receivables 108,382     99,253       

23. Trade & other payables 
Interfund accounts payable 1,320,425 1,167,044   
Provision for Management fees 16,375 17,396       
Unearned discount government bond 13,507 23,231       
Provision for Audit fees 2,818 2,021         
Provision for Trustee fees 2,020 2,073         
Provision for CIS 1,683 1,727         
Provision for custodian fees 530 967            

1,357,357 1,214,459

AFRICAN BANKING CORPORATION EQUITY FUND         
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS         
for the year ended 31 December 2021
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2021 2020
ZMW ZMW

INCOME
Gain on equity stock 102,492 (928,085)      
Dividend received 67,885 77,161         
Interest earned  on GRZ securities 9,732 17,173         
Discount earned on government bonds 9,724 3,250           
Interest on commercial paper 1,182 -                  
Interest on fixed deposits -                  40,560         
Bank interest -                  124              

191,014 (789,817)      
OTHER INCOME
Over provision write back 9,264 -                  
Transaction fees -                  267              

200,278 (789,550)      

OPERATING EXPENSES
Management fees 198,737 219,707       
Custody fees 8,648 10,014         
Trustee fees 8,206 8,562           

215,592 238,283       

ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES
Commission on equity transactions 9,339          10,252         
CIS Levy 6,839          7,135           
Audit Fees 2,818          4,551           
AGM Expenses 2,235          2,472           
Withholding Tax 1,557          2,635           
Bank Charges 492             -                  
Transaction expenses 173             -                  
Credit losses -                  372              

23,452        27,417         

Foreign exchange revaluations -              -              

Total expenditure 239,045      265,700      

(Loss) for the year (38,767)       (1,055,250)   

2021 ANNUAL REPORT

AFRICAN BANKING CORPORATION EQUITY FUND               SCHEDULE 2  
DETAILED SCHEDULE OF INCOME & EXPENSES         
for the year ended 31 December 2021
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ABC ASSET MANAGEMENT

NOTES 2021 2020
ZMW ZMW

Income 
Interest from held to maturity investments Sch 3 28,474,672 18,284,497  
Other Income Sch 3 - 335,065       

Total income 28,474,672   18,619,562  

Operating expenses
Administrative expenses Sch 3 (3,058,772)    (2,048,131)  
Management fees Sch 3 (3,093,542)    (1,952,897)  
Trustee fees Sch 3 (188,621)       (116,000)     
Custodian fees Sch 3 (194,252)       (134,517)     

Total operating expenses (6,535,187)    (4,251,544)  

Profit for the year 21,939,486   14,368,017  

Other comprehensive income - -

Total comprehensive income for the year 21,939,486 14,368,017

AFRICAN BANKING CORPORATION BALANCED FUND                   Appendice 3 
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME     
for the year ended 31 December 2021
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NOTES 2021 2020
ZMW ZMW

ASSETS
Held to maturity investments 24 128,572,718 94,572,265
Bank and cash balances 25 14,580,818 3,682,275
Accounts receivable 26 3,622,046 908,591

Total assets 146,775,582 99,163,131

UNIT HOLDERS FUNDS AND LIABILITIES 

Unit holders  fund 
Balanced fund unit holders investment 122,237,493 84,513,528

Liabilities
Deferred income 27 -                    14,428,322
Accounts payable 27 24,538,089 221,281

24,538,089 14,649,603

Total unit holders funds and liabilities 146,775,582 99,163,131

2021 ANNUAL REPORT

AFRICAN BANKING CORPORATION BALANCED FUND       
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION         
as at 31 December 2021
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ABC ASSET MANAGEMENT

Units Retained
value earnings Total
ZMW ZMW ZMW

Balance at 31 December 2019       54,839,116     23,176,548     78,015,664

Issue of units 59,169,673     -                     59,169,673    
Redemption of units (67,039,826)    -                     (67,039,826)   
Profit for the year -                      14,368,017    14,368,017    

Balance at 31 December 2020       46,968,963     37,544,565     84,513,528
Issue of units 86,189,393     -                     86,189,393    
Redemption of units (70,404,914)    -                     (70,404,914)   
Profit for the year -                      21,939,486    21,939,486    

Balance at 31 December 2021 62,753,442     59,484,051    122,237,493

AFRICAN BANKING CORPORATION BALANCED FUND       
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN UNIT HOLDERS FUNDS        
for the year ended 31 December 2021
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NOTES 2021 2020
ZMW ZMW

Operating activities

Profit for the year 21,939,486 14,368,017

Operating cashflows before movement in working capital 21,939,486 14,368,017

Movements in working capital:
Increase/ (Decrease)in sundry payable 27 24,316,808     (109,996)         
(Increase)/Decrease in interfund accounts receivable 26 (2,713,455)      240,030          

Net cash generated from  operations 43,542,839 14,498,051

Investing activities
(Decrease)/Increase in deferred income 27 (14,428,322)    14,428,322
Increase in held to Maturity investments 24 (34,000,453)    (18,052,710)    

Net cash used in investing activities (48,428,775)    (3,624,388)      

Financing activities
Issue of units 86,189,393 59,169,673     
Redemption of units (70,404,914)    (67,039,826)    

Net cash  generated from (used in) financing activities 15,784,479     (7,870,153)      

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 10,898,544     3,003,509       

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the  year 3,682,275 678,766

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 14,580,818 3,682,275

Cash and cash equivalents consists of:
Bank and cash balances 25 14,580,818 3,682,275

2021 ANNUAL REPORT

AFRICAN BANKING CORPORATION BALANCED FUND       
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS          
for the year ended 31 December 2021



91

ABC ASSET MANAGEMENT

2021 2020
ZMW ZMW

24. Held to Maturity Investments 
Government securities 84,136,542   -                   
Fixed term deposits 33,610,412   31,653,026    
Commercial papers 12,636,209   50,816,336    
Corporate bonds -                    13,033,956    

130,383,164 95,503,318
(1,810,446)   (931,053)        

128,572,718 94,572,265

25. Cash and bank 
Stanbic bank zambia 11,299,916 21,047           
Atlasmara 3,280,902 3,661,229      

14,580,818 3,682,275

26. Trade & other receivable
Other receivables 3,622,046     908,591         

3,622,046 908,591         

27. Trade & other payables 
Unearned discount government bonds 23,702,826 14,428,322    
Other Liabilites 347,732 34,096           
Provision Management Fees 303,098 78,403           
Provision for Audit fee 74,558 32,068           
Provision - Trustee fees 52,287 32,661           
Provision for CIS Levy 43,572 27,218           
Provision Custodian Fees 14,016 16,834           

24,538,089 14,649,602

Allowance for credit losses

AFRICAN BANKING CORPORATION BALANCED FUND        
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS         
for the year ended 31 December 2021
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2021 2020
ZMW ZMW

INCOME
Interest earned  on GRZ securities 11,662,994 5,345,898     
Discount earned on GRZ bonds 7,447,587 614,973        
Interest on fixed deposits 6,370,607 9,576,797     
Interest on corporate bonds 2,624,449 2,728,241     
Interest earned on commercial papers 369,035 -                   
Other income -                       335,065        

28,474,672 18,600,974    

OTHER INCOME
Bank interest -                       18,588

OPERATING EXPENSES
Management fees 3,093,542 1,952,897     
Custodian fees 194,252 134,517        
Trustee fees 188,621 116,000        

3,476,415 2,203,414     

ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES
Withholding Tax 1,864,995        1,412,102     
Credit loss 879,392           434,252        
CIS Levy 157,184           96,667          
Audit Fees 74,558             64,095          
AGM Expenses 59,156             34,096          
Transaction expenses 21,851             -                   
Bank Charges 1,636               3,307            
Redemption Charges -                       3,612            

3,058,772        2,048,131     

Foreign exchange revaluations -                   -               

Total expenditure 6,535,187        4,251,545    

Profit for the year 21,939,486 14,349,429

2021 ANNUAL REPORT

AFRICAN BANKING CORPORATION BALANCED FUND              SCHEDULE 3  
DETAILED SCHEDULE OF INCOME & EXPENSES        
for the year ended 31 December 2021
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ABC ASSET MANAGEMENT

Notes 2021 2020
Income ZMW ZMW
Interest from held to maturity investment Sch 4 1,815,443 1,499,261
Other income Sch 4 -                    451,625         

1,815,443 1,950,886
Operating expenses
Management fees Sch 4 (321,180)       (296,971)        
Custodian fees Sch 4 (41,411)         (37,602)         
Trustee fees Sch 4 (38,736)         (30,165)         
Administrative expenses Sch 4 (496,131)       (373,164)        

Total operating expenses (897,458)       (737,902)        

Profit for the year 917,985        1,212,984      

Other comprehensive income

Foreign exchange translation loss/ gains (6,435,382)    6,815,635

Total comprehensive (loss)/ income for the year (5,517,397)    8,028,619

AFRICAN BANKING CORPORATION DOLLAR FUND                     Appendice 4 
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME     
for the year ended 31 December 2021
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NOTES 2021 2020
ASSETS ZMW ZMW
Held to maturity investments 28 20,449,923 22,134,501
Accounts receivable 30 920,061 1,164,075    
Bank and cash balances 29 1,274,596 823,473

Total assets 22,644,579 24,122,048

UNIT HOLDERS FUNDS AND LIABILITIES 

Unit holders fund 
USD Dollar fund unit holders investment 14,799,393 10,756,496
Retained earnings 7,780,608 13,298,005

22,580,002 24,054,501
Liabilities
Accounts payable 31 64,578 67,546

64,578 67,546

Total unit holders funds and liabilities 22,644,579 24,122,048

2021 ANNUAL REPORT

AFRICAN BANKING CORPORATION BALANCED FUND              SCHEDULE 3  
DETAILED SCHEDULE OF INCOME & EXPENSES        
for the year ended 31 December 2021
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ABC ASSET MANAGEMENT

Units Retained
value earnings Total

ZMW ZMW ZMW
Balance at 31 December 2019 788,850 7,235,866        5,269,386       12,505,252     

Issue of units 1,092,828    14,156,551      -                      14,156,551     
Redemption of units (943,976)      (10,635,921)     -                      (10,635,921)    
Profit for the year -                   -                      1,212,984       1,212,984       
Foreign exchange translation gains -                   -                      6,815,635       6,815,635       

Balance at 31 December 2020 937,702       10,756,496      13,298,005     24,054,501 
Issue of units -                   28,804,196        -                      28,804,196     
Redemption of units -                   (24,761,299)      -                      (24,761,299)    
Profit for the year -                   -                       917,985            917,985          
Foreign exchange translation loss -                   -                       (6,435,382)        (6,435,382)      

Balance at 31 December 2021 937,702       14,799,393      7,780,608       22,580,002     

Number of
units

AFRICAN BANKING CORPORATION DOLLAR FUND        
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN UNIT HOLDERS FUNDS        
for the year ended 31 December 2021



96

NOTES 2021 2020
ZMW ZMW

Cash flows from operating activities
(Loss)/ Profit for the year (5,517,397)     1,212,984     

Operating cashflows before movement in working capital (5,517,397)     1,212,984     

Movements in working capital 
(Decrease) /Increase in Interfund accounts receivable 30 244,014          (1,164,068)    
(Decrease)/Increase in accounts payable (2,968)            10,080          

Net cash generated from / (used in) operations (5,276,351)     58,996          

Investing activities
Maturity of held to maturity investments 28 1,684,578       (10,829,755)  
Foreign exchange translation gains Sch 4 -                     6,815,632

Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activities 1,684,578       (4,014,123)    

Financing activities
Issue of units 28,804,196     14,156,551   
Redemption of units (24,761,299)   (10,635,918)  

Net cash generated from financing activities 4,042,897       3,520,633     

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 451,124          (434,494)       

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 823,473 1,257,966

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 1,274,596 823,473

Cash and cash equivalents consists of:
Bank and cash balances 29 1,274,596       823,473        

2021 ANNUAL REPORT

AFRICAN BANKING CORPORATION DOLLAR FUND        
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS          
for the year ended 31 December 2021
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ABC ASSET MANAGEMENT

2021 2020
ZMW ZMW

28. Held to Maturity Investments 
Fixed term deposits 19,692,848  23,269,453  
Commercial paper 1,849,837    -                 

21,542,685 23,269,453
(1,092,762)   (1,134,952)   

20,449,923 22,134,501

29. Cash and bank 
Atlasmara Bank PLC 1,271,962 811,567       
Stanbic Bank Zambia 2,634 11,906         

1,274,596 823,473

30. Trade & other receivable
Other receivables 920,061       -                 

31. Trade & other payables 
Provision Management Fees 25,168         27,167         
Provision for Audit fee 11,735         8,727          
Other Liabilites 9,311           10,989         
Provision trustee fees 8,813 9,033          
Provision for CIS Levy 7,344           7,528          
Provision Custodian Fees 2,206           4,103          

64,578 67,547

Allowance for credit losses

AFRICAN BANKING CORPORATION DOLLAR FUND         
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS         
for the year ended 31 December 2021
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2021 2020
ZMW ZMW

INCOME
Interest on fixed deposits 1,779,441 1,499,261     
Interest amortised 36,003 -                  
Interest on commercial paper -                   451,625        

1,815,443 1,950,886     

OPERATING EXPENSES
Management fees 321,180 296,971        
Custodian fees 41,411 37,602          
Trustee fees 38,736 30,165          

401,327 364,738        

ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES
Credit loss 225,313       1,262           
Transaction expenses 117,310       -                  
Withholding tax/Handling fee 84,189         315,880        
CIS Levy 32,280         26,554          
Audit Fees 13,315         16,086          
Bank Charges 13,159         2,546           
AGM Expenses 10,564         7,285           
Redemption charges -                   3,552           

496,131       373,165        

Foreign exchange revaluations 6,435,382    6,815,632   

Total expenditure 7,332,840    737,903       

(Loss)/profit for the year (5,517,397)   8,028,615

2021 ANNUAL REPORT

AFRICAN BANKING CORPORATION DOLLAR FUND              SCHEDULE 4  
DETAILED SCHEDULE OF INCOME & EXPENSES         
for the year ended 31 December 2021
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ABC ASSET MANAGEMENT

NOTES 2021 2020
ZMW ZMW

Income 
Interest from held to maturity investments Sch 5 1,154,430 868,714

Total income 1,154,430     868,714       

Operating expenses
Management fees Sch 5 (184,148)       (103,519)     
Administrative expenses Sch 5 (136,006)       (103,124)     
Custodian fees Sch 5 (21,066)         (16,487)       
Trustee fees Sch 5 -                    (13,293)       

Total operating expenses (341,220)       (236,423)     

Profit for the year 813,210        632,291       

Other comprehensive income

(Loss)/gain in foreign exchange translation (2,798,885)    2,745,389

Total comprehensive loss for the year (1,985,675)    3,377,680

AFRICAN BANKING CORPORATION USD HIGH YIELD FUND     Appendice 5  
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME     
for the year ended 31 December 2021
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NOTES 2021 2020
ZMW ZMW

ASSETS
Held to maturity investments 32 11,509,253 13,540,989
Accounts receivables 34 1,014,973 1,289,221
Cash and bank 33 9,170 -                 

Total Assets 12,533,396    14,830,210  

UNIT HOLDERS FUNDS AND LIABILITIES 

Unit holders fund 
USD High Yield fund unit holders 7,211,004      7,280,415    
Retained earnings 4,367,745      6,353,420    

11,578,749 13,633,835  

Liabilities
Interfund accounts payable balances 35 924,811         1,167,787    
Accounts payable 35 29,836           28,588        

954,647         1,196,375    

Total unit holders funds and liabilities 12,533,396    14,830,210  

2021 ANNUAL REPORT

AFRICAN BANKING CORPORATION USD HIGH YIELD FUND      
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION         
as at 31 December 2021
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ABC ASSET MANAGEMENT

Units Retained
value earnings Total
ZMW ZMW ZMW

Balance at 31 December 2019 3,101,649     2,975,740 6,077,388       

Issue of units 9,139,746     - 9,139,746       
Redemption of units (4,960,980)    - (4,960,980)      
Profit for the year -                   632,291 632,291          
Foreign exchange translation gains -                   2,745,389 2,745,389       

Balance at 31 December 2020 7,280,415     6,353,420     13,633,835     
Issue of units 5,040,816     -                   5,040,816       
Redemption of units (5,110,227)    -                   (5,110,227)      
Profit for the year -                   813,210        813,210          
Foreign exchange translation loss -                   (2,798,885)    (2,798,885)      

Balance at 31 December 2021 7,211,004    4,367,745    11,578,749    

AFRICAN BANKING CORPORATION USD HIGH YIELD FUND      
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN UNIT HOLDERS FUNDS       
for the year ended 31 December 2021
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NOTES 2021 2020
ZMW ZMW

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the year 813,210       632,291       

Operating cashflows before movement in working capital 813,210       632,291       

Movements in working capital 
Decrease/(Increase) in accounts receivable 34 274,248       (428,824)      
Increase/ (Decrease)in accounts payable 35 1,248           (7,094)         
(Decrease)/Increase in interfund accounts payable 35 (242,976)      411,833       

Net cash generated from operations 845,731       608,206       

Investing activities
(Decrease)/Increase in held to maturity investment 32 2,031,736    (7,144,645)   
Foreign exchange translation loss Sch 5 (2,798,885)  2,745,389    

Net cash used in investing activities (767,149)      (4,399,256)   

Financing activities
Issue of units during the year 5,040,816    9,139,746    
Redemption of units during the year (5,110,227)  (4,960,980)   

Net cash generated from financing activities (69,411)       4,178,766    

Net increase/ decrease in cash and cash equivalents 9,170           387,716       

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year -                  (387,716)      

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 9,170            -                 

Cash and cash equivalents consists of:
Cash balance 33 9,170           -                 

2021 ANNUAL REPORT

AFRICAN BANKING CORPORATION USD HIGH YIELD FUND      
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS          
for the year ended 31 December 2021
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ABC ASSET MANAGEMENT

2021 2020
ZMW ZMW

32. Held to Maturity Investments 
Fixed term deposits 8,054,110  13,607,960  
Commercial paper 3,578,748  -                 

11,632,859 13,607,960
(123,606)    (66,971)        

11,509,253 13,540,989

33. Cash and bank 
Atlasmara Bank PLC 9,170 -                 

9,170 -                 

34. Accounts receivable
Sundry receivables 1,014,973  1,289,221    

35. Trade & other payables 
Other Liabilities 924,811     1,167,787    
Provision Management Fees 14,720       13,596         
Provision for Audit Fee 5,988         4,458          
Provision trustee Fees 4,584 4,438          
Provision for CIS Levy 3,820 3,698          
Provision Custodian Fees 725            4,103          

-                 
954,647 1,198,080

Allowance for credit losses

AFRICAN BANKING CORPORATION USD HIGH YIELD FUND       
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS         
for the year ended 31 December 2021
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2021 2020
ZMW ZMW

INCOME
Interest on fixed deposits 1,112,677 868,714        
Interest on commercial paper 41,752          -                   

1,154,430 868,714        

OPERATING EXPENSES
Management fees 184,148 103,519        
Custodian fees 21,066 16,487          
Trustee fees -                    13,293          

205,214 133,299        

ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES
Credit loss 80,379          59,195          
Provision for imapirment 19,772          -                   
CIS Levy 16,477          8,789            
AGM Expenses 9,977            3,716            
Audit Fees 6,794            7,160            
Transaction expenses 2,465            6,274            
Bank Charges 143               -                   
Withholding tax/Handling fee -                    17,990          

136,006        103,124        

Foreign exchange revaluations loss/ gains 2,798,885     2,745,389     

Total expenditure 3,140,105     236,423        

(Loss)/profit for the year (1,985,675)    3,377,680

2021 ANNUAL REPORT

AFRICAN BANKING CORPORATION USD HIGH YIELD FUND                  SCHEDULE 5 
DETAILED SCHEDULE OF INCOME & EXPENSES        
for the year ended 31 December 2021
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ABC ASSET MANAGEMENT

2021 2020
NOTES ZMW ZMW

Income 
Interest from held to maturity investments Sch 6 834,114 766,846
Other Income Sch 6 234 -

Total income 834,348 766,846

Operating expenses
Management fees Sch 6 (103,478)     (107,572)    
Administrative expenses Sch 6 (47,281)       (75,031)     
Custodian fees Sch 6 (5,646)         (5,226)       
Trustee fees Sch 6 (5,587)         (5,547)       

Total operating expenses (161,991)     (193,376)    

Profit for the year 672,357 573,470

Other comprehensive income - -

Total comprehensive income for the year 672,357 573,470

AFRICAN BANKING CORPORATION GRATUITY TRUST FUND              Appendice 6 
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME     
for the year ended 31 December 2021



106

NOTES 2021 2020
ZMW ZMW

ASSETS
Held to maturity investments 36 3,721,319 2,802,380
Accounts receivable 38 14,853 -                
Bank and cash balances 37 389,647 452,735

Total assets 4,125,820 3,255,115

UNIT HOLDERS FUNDS AND LIABILITIES 

Unit holders fund 
Gratuity fund unit holders investment 3,570,296 3,241,774

Liabilities
Accounts payable 39 555,524 13,341

Total unit holders funds and liabilities 4,125,820 3,255,115

2021 ANNUAL REPORT

AFRICAN BANKING CORPORATION GRATUITY TRUST FUND      
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION         
as at 31 December 2021
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ABC ASSET MANAGEMENT

Units Retained
value earnings Total
ZMW ZMW ZMW

Balance at 31 December 2019 1,711,184         1,330,816    1,870,053    3,200,870    
Issue of units 4,117,084          5,669,131     -                   5,669,131     
Redemption of units (4,325,676)         (6,201,697)    -                   (6,201,697)    
Profit for the year -                       -                   573,470        573,470        

Balance at 31 December 2020 1,502,592 798,251 2,443,523 3,241,774
Issue of units -                       4,496,483     -                   4,496,483     
Redemption of units -                       (4,840,318)    -                   (4,840,318)    
Profit for the year -                       -                   672,357        672,357        

Balance at 31 December 2021 1,502,592 454,417       3,115,880    3,570,297    

Number of units

AFRICAN BANKING CORPORATION GRATUITY TRUST FUND              Appendice 6 
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME     
for the year ended 31 December 2021
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NOTES 2021 2020
ZMW ZMW

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the year 672,357           573,470         

Operating cashflows before movement in working capital 672,357           573,470         

Movements in working capital:
Increase in accounts receivable 38 (14,853)            
Increase/(Decrease) in accounts payable 39 542,183           (1,630)           

Net cash generated from operating activities 1,199,687        571,840         

Investing activities
Maturity of held to maturity investments 36 (918,939)          370,718         

Net cash generated used in  investing activities (918,939)          370,718         

Financing activities
Issue of units 4,496,483        5,669,131      
Redemption of units (4,840,318)       (6,201,697)     

Net cash used in financing activities (343,834)          (532,566)       

Net( increase)/decrease in cash and cash equivalents (63,086)            409,992         

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 452,734           42,742          

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 389,647           452,734         

Cash and cash equivalents consists of:
Bank and cash balances 37 389,647           452,735         

2021 ANNUAL REPORT

AFRICAN BANKING CORPORATION GRATUITY TRUST FUND      
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS          
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ABC ASSET MANAGEMENT

2021 2020
ZMW ZMW

36. Held to Maturity Investments 
Fixed term deposits 2,038,195   1,694,589  
Government securities 1,530,277   1,147,824  
Commercial paper 199,116      -               

3,767,588   2,842,413
(46,269)       (40,033)      

3,721,319 2,802,380

37. Cash and bank 
Atlasmara Bank PLC 354,395 450,642     
Stanbic Bank Zambia 35,252 2,093

389,647 452,735     

38. Accounts receivable
Sundry receivables 14,853        -               

39. Trade & other payables 
Other Liabilities 541,615      1,575         
Provision Management Fees 8,614          8,025         
Provision for Audit Fee 2,138          1,106         
Provision trustee Fees 1,503          1,164         
Provision for CIS Levy 1,253          970            
Provision Custodian Fees 402             501            

-               
555,524 13,341

Allowance for credit losses

AFRICAN BANKING CORPORATION GRATUITY TRUST FUND       
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS         
for the year ended 31 December 2021
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2021 2020
ZMW ZMW

INCOME
Interest on fixed deposits 485,195 499,886        
Interest on GRZ bonds 213,803 264,974        
Discount earned on GRZ bonds 111,741 -                   
Interest on commercial paper 23,374 -                   
Interest on call account -                    1,986            

834,114 766,846        

OTHER INCOME
Over provision of AGM expenses 234 -                   

OPERATING EXPENSES
Management fees 103,478 107,572        
Trustee fees 5,646            5,226            
Custodian fees 5,587 5,547            

114,710 118,345        

ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES
Withholding tax/Handling fee 30,501          51,392          
Credit loss 6,235            12,924          
CIS Levy 4,705            4,355            
Bank Charges 2,367            1,614            
Audit Fees 2,138            2,775            
AGM Expenses 1,335            1,509            
Transaction expenses -                    462               

47,281          75,031          

Foreign exchange revaluations gains -                -               

Total expenditure 161,991        193,376        

Profit for the year 672,357        573,470

2021 ANNUAL REPORT

AFRICAN BANKING CORPORATION GRATUITY TRUST FUND             SCHEDULE 6  
DETAILED SCHEDULE OF INCOME & EXPENSES        
for the year ended 31 December 2021
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ABC ASSET MANAGEMENT

2021 2020
NOTES K K

Income 
Interest from held to maturity investments Sch 7 7,862,802    4,148,348    
Other income -                   85,062         

Total income 7,862,802    4,233,410    

Operating expenses
Administrative expenses Sch 7 (1,173,622)   (294,630)      
Management fees Sch 7 (1,341,852)   (278,376)      
Custodian fees Sch 7 (51,241)        (31,363)        
Trustee fees Sch 7 (50,247)        (27,188)        

Total operating expenses (2,616,961)   (631,557)      

Profit for the year 5,245,842    3,601,853    

Other comprehensive income - -

Total comprehensive income for the year 5,245,842 3,601,853

AFRICAN BANKING CORPORATION ZMW HIGH YIELD FUND              Appendice 7 
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME     
for the year ended 31 December 2021
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NOTES  2021  2020
ASSETS K K
Held to maturity investments 40 46,967,369   21,434,156  
Bank and cash balance 41 36,778          141,736       
Interfund accounts receivable 42 19,450          19,128         

47,023,598   21,595,020  

UNIT HOLDERS FUNDS AND LIABILITIES

Unit holders funds
ZMW High Yield fund unit holders investment 34,861,830   18,401,841  

Liabilities
Accounts payable 43 12,161,769   3,193,179    

Total unit holders funds and liabilities 47,023,598   21,595,020  

2021 ANNUAL REPORT

AFRICAN BANKING CORPORATION ZMW HIGH YIELD FUND      
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ABC ASSET MANAGEMENT

Units Retained
value earnings Total

K K K
Balance at 1 January 2019
Issue of units 9,910,361 -                   9,910,361
Redemption of units (2,072,092)       -                   (2,072,092)       
Profit for the year -                     892,425 892,425           

Balance at 31 December 2019 7,838,269       892,425       8,730,694       

Issue of units 23,660,656     -                   23,660,656     
Redemption of units (17,591,362)   -                   (17,591,362)   
Profit for the year -                     3,601,853    3,601,853       

Balance at 31 December 2020 13,907,564     4,494,278 18,401,842
Issue of units 24,620,622      -                   24,620,622      
Redemption of units (13,406,476)     -                   (13,406,476)     
Profit for the year -                     5,245,842    5,245,842        

Balance at 31 December 2021 25,121,710     9,740,120 34,861,830

AFRICAN BANKING CORPORATION ZMW HIGH YIELD FUND      
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN UNIT HOLDERS FUNDS       
for the year ended 31 December 2021
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2021 2020
Cash flows from operating activities K K
Profit for the year 5,245,842      3,601,853     

Operating cashflows before movement in working capital 5,245,842      3,601,853     

Movements in working capital:
(Increase)/Decrease in accounts receivable (322)               (4,278)          
Increase in accounts payable 8,968,590      151,315        

Net cash generated from operating activities 14,214,110    3,748,890     

Investing activities
Maturity of held to maturity investments (25,533,213)   (9,711,738)    

Net cash used in investing activities (25,533,213)   (9,711,738)    

Financing activities
Issue of units 24,620,622 23,660,656
Receipts from sale of investments (13,406,476)   (17,591,362)  

Net cash generated from financing activities 11,214,146    6,069,294     

Net Decrease in cash and cash equivalents (104,958)        106,446        

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 141,736         35,290          

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 36,778           141,736        

Cash and cash equivalents consists of:
Bank and cash balances 36,778           141,736        

NOTES

42
43

40

41

2021 ANNUAL REPORT
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ABC ASSET MANAGEMENT

2021 2020
K K

40. Held to Maturity Investments 
Government securities 28,093,661  10,887,905   
Commercial paper 13,684,915  -                  
Fixed term deposits 5,891,211    10,655,215   

47,669,787  21,543,120
(702,418)      (108,964)       

46,967,369 21,434,156

41. Cash and bank 
Atlasmara bank PLC 36,089 126,853
Stanbic bank 689 14,883

36,778 141,736        

42. Accounts receivable
Sundry receivables 19,450         19,128          

43. Trade & other payables 
Unearned discount government bond 9,032,683 2,848,361
Other Liabilities 2,938,364    284,954
Provision management fees 130,568       35,816
Provision for Audit fee 24,537         6,594
Provision Trustee fees 16,911         7,448
Provision for CIS Levy 14,093         6,206
Provision Custodian Fees 4,613           3,799

12,161,769 3,193,178

Allowance for credit losses

AFRICAN BANKING CORPORATION ZMW HIGH YIELD FUND       
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS         
for the year ended 31 December 2021
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2021 2020
K K

INCOME
Interest on GRZ Loan 2,964,063 303,548        
Earned discount 2,075,319 -                   
Interest on Fixed deposits 2,017,718 3,240,316     
Interest on commercial paper 688,510 -                   
Treasury bills 117,192        85,062          
Bank call interest -                    14,999          

7,862,802 3,643,925     

OPERATING EXPENSES
Management fees 1,341,852     278,376        
Custodian fees 51,241          31,363          
Trustee fees 50,247          27,188          

1,443,339 336,927        

ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES
Credit loss 593,454        97,956          
Withholding tax/Handling fee 492,347        144,916        
CIS Levy 41,872          22,657          
Audit Fees 24,537          14,799          
AGM Expenses 19,468          7,894            
Transaction expense 1,614            6,409            
Bank Charges 330               -                   

1,173,622     294,631        

Foreign exchange revaluations gains -                -               

Total expenditure 2,616,961     631,558        

Profit for the year 5,245,842     3,012,368

2021 ANNUAL REPORT

AFRICAN BANKING CORPORATION ZMW HIGH YIELD FUND             SCHEDULE 7  
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for the year ended 31 December 2021
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ABC ASSET MANAGEMENT

Notice is hereby given for the 11th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of African Banking Corporation Unit Trusts to 
be held on 29th March 2022 at Taj Pamodzi Hotel in Lusaka starting at 09:00 hours. Investors will also be allowed 
to join via Zoom.
 
The Agenda will be as follows:
 
1. Chairman’s Statement

2. Consideration and Adoption of Minutes of the 11th AGM and Matters Arising

3. Report from the Fund Manger

4. Adoption of Audited Financial Statements for years ending 31st December 2021

5. Re-appointment of Auditors

6. Any Other Business
    To transact any other business that may properly be transacted at the Annual General Meeting.
 
A Unit Holder entitled to attend is eligible to appoint a proxy to attend, speak, and vote on his / her behalf. The 
proxy need not be a Unit Holder. 

Proxy forms are available for download on www.abcassetmanagement.com whilst physical copies can be 
obtained from our Head Office at Atlas Mara Head Office, Ground Floor, Atlas Mara House, Corner Church/
Nasser Roads, Ridgeway, Lusaka. These proxy forms must be lodged no less than 48 hours prior to the ap-
pointed time of the AGM. 

ABC Asset Management,
For/On behalf of the Trustees

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 2021
AFRICAN BANKING CORPORATION (ABC) UNIT TRUSTS

AMG Global Trust Limited

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
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PROXY FORM

I/We (NAME (S) IN BLOCK LETTERS)

Being a holder of units in the ABC Asset Management do hereby appoint:

1. or failing him/her;

2. or failing him/her;

3. The Chairman of the Annual General Meeting;
 
As my/our proxy to act for me/us at the 11th Annual General Meeting of ABC Asset Management to be held on 
Thursday 29th March 2022 via zoom, in Lusaka at 09:00 hours.

Signed at on

D D M M C C Y Y

Signature
(Where applicable)  Assisted by

Note:
 
1. Each Unit holder is entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend, speak and vote in place of the Unit 
    Holder at the Annual General Meeting.
 
2. The Proxy Form should be completed and returned not later than 48 hours before the meeting.


